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This is an English translation of the original Italian document “Bilanci 2020”. In cases of conflict between the English language document and the lItalian
document, the interpretation of the Italian language document prevails. The Italian original is available on group.intesasanpaolo.com.

This document contains certain forward-looking statements, projections, objectives, estimates and forecasts reflecting the Intesa Sanpaolo
management’s current views with respect to certain future events. Forward-looking statements, projections, objectives, estimates and forecasts are
generally identifiable by the use of the words “may,” “will,” “should,” “plan,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “believe,” “intend,” “project,” “goal” or “target”
or the negative of these words or other variations on these words or comparable terminology. These forward-looking statements include, but are not
limited to, all statements other than statements of historical facts, including, without limitation, those regarding Intesa Sanpaolo’s future financial position
and results of operations, strategy, plans, objectives, goals and targets and future developments in the markets where Intesa Sanpaolo participates or is
seeking to participate.

Due to such uncertainties and risks, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements as a prediction of actual
results. The Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s ability to achieve its projected objectives or results is dependent on many factors which are outside management’s
control. Actual results may differ materially from (and be more negative than) those projected or implied in the forward-looking statements. Such forward-
looking information involves risks and uncertainties that could significantly affect expected results and is based on certain key assumptions.

All forward-looking statements included herein are based on information available to Intesa Sanpaolo as of the date hereof. Intesa Sanpaolo undertakes
no obligation to update publicly or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as
may be required by applicable law. All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to Intesa Sanpaolo or persons acting on its
behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by these cautionary statements.
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The Intesa Sanpaolo Group: presence in Italy
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The Intesa Sanpaolo Group: international presence
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INTEA

nnn

ALEXBANK | agai4eMI Ay BANCA INTESA

EXIMBANK BARK [XEMBOURG
Moy o] m SANBAOLO BANK
BANKIRELAND RASLSA

i PRIVREDNA BANKA ZAGREB

AMERICA

Direct Branches| Representative Offices

New York Washington D.C.
Newy York3!

Reprosontatie Offics

Brazil Intesa Sanpaolo Brasil 1 Séo Paulo®

OCEANIA

Representative Offices

AFRICA

Representative Offices

Cairo Egypt Bank of Alexandria

BANCA INTESA RANK
Beograd CIB
FIDEURAM INTES4 SANB4OIO RANK
NTESA SANBACLO PRIVILE BANKING Albania
INTESA SANPAOIO BANKA
] INTES4 SNNPAOLO BANK e e
@ INTESL
PROATE BANK SIS fo] PRAVEX BANK

UBI><Banca ] VUB BANKA
ASIA EUROPA
Representative Offices Representative Offices
Abu Dhabi Beijing Frankfurt Brussels("
Doha Beirut Istanbul Moscow@)
Dubai Dubai® London
Hong Kong Ho Chi Minh City Madrid
Shanghai Hong Kang® Nicel@
Singapore Jakarta Paris
Tokyo Mumbai Warsaw

Seoul
Shanghai®

176

Casablanca®

Product Companies

[+ PBZ carp

£-money and Payment Systems

INTESA -
pw] CIB LEASING @m ] PBZ ieasnG (7] VUB wasmva

Singapore

Albania Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Albania 35
Bosnia and Herzegovina Intesa Sanpaolo Banka Bosna i Hercegovina 47
Croatia Privredna Banka Zagreb 161
Czech Republic VUB Banka 1
Hungary CIB Bank 63
Ireland Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Ireland 1
Luxembourg Fideuram Bank Luxembourg 1

Intesa Sanpaoclo Bank Luxembourg 1
Moldova Eximbank 17
Romania Intesa Sanpaoclo Bank Romania 32
Russian Federation Banca Intesa 28
Serbia Banca Intesa Beograd 155
Slovakia VUB Banka 186
Slovenia Intesa Sanpaolo Bank 46
Switzerland Intesa Sanpaolo Private Bank (Suisse) Morval 2
The Netherlands Intesa Sanpaclo Bank Luxembourg 1
Ukraine Pravex Bank 45
United Kingdom Intesa Sanpaolo Private Bank (Suisse) Morval 1

Figures as at 31 December 2020

(1) European Regulatory & Public Affairs

(2) UBI Banca branch

(3) UBJ Banca Representative Office

{4) The Group is also present through the UBf Banca Representative
Office

[= EURIZON ARET MANAGEMENT IRELAND W
eogra
= ’ @ Pramerica

Leasing

Wealth Management






Board of Directors, Manager responsible for preparing

the Company’'s financial

Auditors

Board of Directors

Chairman
Deputy Chairperson
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Directors

Manager responsible for preparing
the company’s financial reports

Independent Auditors

(@) General Manager
™* Member of the Management Control Committee
(**) Chairman of the Management Control Committee

reports and

Gian Maria GROS-PIETRO
Paolo Andrea COLOMBO

Carlo MESSINA @

Franco CERUTI

Roberto FRANCHINI @ )
Anna GATTI

Rossella LOCATELLI
Maria MAZZARELLA
Fabrizio MOSCA )
Milena Teresa MOTTA )
Luciano NEBBIA

Bruno PICCA

Alberto Maria PISANI ()
Livia POMODORO
Andrea SIRONI @

Maria Alessandra STEFANELLI
Guglielmo WEBER
Daniele ZAMBONI

Maria Cristina ZOPPO ()

Fabrizio DABBENE

KPMG S.p.A.

Independent

1) Was appointed as a Director at the Shareholders’ Meeting of 27 April 2020 replacing Corrado Gatti who had ceased to hold

office

2) Was appointed as a Director at the Shareholders’ Meeting of 27 April 2020, following co-option by the Board of Directors on

2 December 2019






Letter from the Chairman

Distinguished Shareholders,

the spread of the SARS - COVID-19 virus and the subsequent waves of infection have led to major changes in
living habits, particularly in the more developed countries. This has affected all economic activities, due to the
rapid expansion of consumption patterns and working practices that reduce the number of people travelling and
working together. The forced closure of manufacturing and services, although temporary, had a very severe
impact on business and jobs, followed by very sharp recovery when the lockdowns were lifted. Weaknesses
emerged in the international production chain, which had been underestimated, and more attention is now being
paid to over-dependency on external sources. This may lead to a change in localisation models for production
and trade of goods and services, bringing in instruments to mitigate the risks of disruption of supply chains.
Opportunities will emerge for countries that are highly open to international trade and are able to act as first
movers.

The severity of the crisis has prompted the nations of the old continent to adopt a new approach towards the
management of the European Union’s economic system: from a vision of austerity and rigidity to more flexibility
and inclusion. The suspension of the Maastricht criteria, the approval of the SURE instrument and the
establishment of the Next Generation EU package, represent substantial progress in the European integration
along socially, economically and environmentally sustainable lines. As a result of these measures, together with
the actions taken by the European Central Bank, it was possible to overcome the problems of liquidity and start
planning for the future.

The process of the United Kingdom’s departure from the European Union took place on the basis of mutually
agreed arrangements, which should provide the framework for a new type of competitive but non-confrontational
relationship. The outcome of the US elections, with Joe Biden’s victory, points to a more open and cooperative
multilateral approach to US foreign policy.

In 2020, the performance of Italian GDP tracked the implementation of the measures adopted to contain the
virus, with a recession of unprecedented severity and speed in the first and second quarters, an exceptional
recovery in the summer, and a further slowdown at the end of the year as the second wave of infections began.
Despite the responsiveness of business and industry and a solid banking sector having a complementary
supporting role to the public sector and monetary policy interventions, Italy ended the year with an 8.9% fall in
GDP — but nevertheless after having shown a high level of resilience and ability to adapt.

The speed of the recovery this year will depend on the evolution of the epidemic and the ability to effectively use
the funds made available by the EU with the approval of the aid programme. The implementation of the
programme of European regeneration will be supported by the banking system, which will play a key role in
allocating resources efficiently and helping people to move their savings, accumulated in cash due to the
uncertainty, into profitable investments capable of generating a lasting social impact and promoting sustainable
and inclusive growth. For businesses, the task of banks in the new scenario will be not only to provide credit, but
also to help them access alternative sources of funding, with a focus on venture capital.

The development of effective vaccines in record time has fuelled expectations of a return to normality. However,
the continued spread of the virus and the emergence of new variants may still necessitate periods of suspension
of certain activities. The ability to cope with the containment of the virus, and the speed in reducing its spread,
will generate significant competitive advantages between countries.

Intesa Sanpaolo acted decisively to deal with the pandemic, both in terms of its own business operations and the
activities of the surrounding community. At all times, your Bank guaranteed the continuity of its essential banking
service, while protecting its personnel and customers. It also expanded the already extensive use of remote
working, to over 80,000 people, with UBI. After the external constraints have disappeared, the strengthening of
core digital capabilities and individual equipment, together with the development of effective methods of remote
co-working, will allow us to use these tools for the flexible organisation of the various activities of our personnel,
also at individual level. However, this will not lessen the importance of in situ interpersonal relationships,
because of their immediate effectiveness and ability to facilitate group bonding, and because they are essential
to developing high-level professional expertise. We are the largest private employer in Italy and we are
committed to pursuing socially and economically sound paths of development.

Our commitment to environmental, social and governance objectives is constant, and well recognised. Intesa
Sanpaolo is the only Italian bank listed in the Dow Jones Sustainability Indices, in the Corporate Knights “Global
100 Most Sustainable Corporations in the World Index” in 2021 and in the Refinitiv Diversity & Inclusion Index,
which selects the world’s top 100 listed companies in terms of diversity and inclusion. It is also the first among
European banks to be ranked in three of the top ESG international assessments (by MSCI, Sustainalytics, and



Bloomberg ESG Disclosure Score) and it has been included in the Bloomberg Gender-Equality Index (GEI), with
a score for 2021 well above the average for the global financial sector and Italian companies.

The Bank has fulfilled its role as a driver for Italy’s development. The first objective was to prevent a temporary
halt in economic activity from causing permanent damage to business and industry, due to a lack of liquidity: we
were the first to grant moratoria, for a total of 95 billion euro. We donated 100 million euro to strengthen the
national health system, allocated 125 million euro from the Impact Fund (50% of its resources) to reducing the
social and economic hardship caused by COVID-19. We also made 50 billion euro of new credit available to
businesses and professionals to protect jobs and manage payments during the emergency, in addition to 10
billion euro of new credit facilities to support around 2,500 Italian business sectors.

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group is continuing its evolution towards activities that will enable us to maintain the loyalty
of our existing customers and acquire new ones. Including UBI, we now have more than 12 million multi-channel
customers. The Intesa Sanpaolo app is considered one of the best in Europe, and more than 7 million customers
use our ISP and UBI apps. As a result of the agreement with Google and TIM for the creation of two Region
Cloud Hubs, in Turin and Milan, the Bank will be able to rapidly expand its range of digital services, securely and
at competitive prices, so as to anticipate, and stimulate, growth in demand.

The development of digital tools is being accompanied by the integration of the range of services offered to
customers. Alongside the traditional deposit-taking and lending activities, Intesa Sanpaolo has long been a
leading operator in the vast area of services for protection, investment and asset management, protection of
individuals and their property, and protection of businesses. The protection does not stop at cover for damages
and is expanding to the direct provision of services: with the acquisition of control of RBM, Intesa Sanpaolo has
become an operator in the healthcare sector, which is set to grow considerably.

The strategic objective of the acquisition of the UBI Banca Group was to create value for all stakeholders and to
strengthen the leadership position in the European banking system, in support of inclusive and long-term growth.
The progressive integration of UBI Banca, which has not resulted in any social costs, is well under way and
ahead of schedule. The integration of the UBI personnel is moving forward with complete success. As we
expected, the level of professional expertise and the cooperation from the people the UBI merger is bringing into
the Intesa Sanpaolo Group are excellent. This has enabled their deployment, also at the highest levels, as part
of a revision that has enriched Intesa Sanpaolo’s organisational structures, with a view to optimising them for its
new geographical footprint and reach within the banking industry. The estimated synergies are now higher than
those envisaged when the Public Purchase and Exchange Offer was launched. This transaction will allow the
Group to strengthen its role as a driver of the real and social economy, with market shares of around 20% in all
main business sectors.

The 2020 results reflect sustainable profitability, supported by a resilient and well-diversified business model and
numerous competitive advantages: 61% of the 2020 gross income comes from the Wealth Management and
Protection business. The solidity of the Bank’s capital base is at the highest levels in the Eurozone, exceeding
the prudential benchmark set by the ECB by more than 23 billion euro.

The economic value generated in 2020 — over 19 billion euro — was distributed as follows: 74% to stakeholders,
of which 43% to the people that work for us, 5% to Shareholders, and the remainder to suppliers, the
government, entities, institutions and communities. A part of the profit has also been allocated to support high
social impact projects and help people experiencing significant social and economic vulnerability through the
Allowance for charitable, social and cultural contributions.

In consideration of a Group consolidated net income of 3,277 million euro and a Parent Company net income of
679 million euro, a proposal is being made to the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting to distribute cash dividends
amounting to 694 million euro, the maximum quantity currently established by the regulator, equal to 3.57euro
cents per ordinary share, before tax. Once the ECB restrictions have been lifted, we will seek authorisation to
distribute in cash, from reserves, the remainder of the planned payout ratio amounting to a total of 75% of the
3.5 billion euro of 2020 adjusted net income.

Gian Maria Gros-Pietro
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Introduction

As set forth by Legislative Decree 38 of 28 February 2005, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s Consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in compliance with the IAS/IFRS issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the
related interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), endorsed by the European
Commission as provided for by EC Regulation 1606 of 19 July 2002.

The Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2020 have been prepared based on the “Instructions for the
preparation of the separate and consolidated financial statements of banks and financial companies, which are parent
companies of banking groups” issued by the Bank of Italy, in the exercise of powers set forth by Art. 43 of Legislative Decree
136/2015, with Regulation of 22 December 2005, which issued Circular 262/05, as updated and supplemented. These
Instructions set out compulsory financial statement forms, as well as the contents of the Notes to the financial statements.

In particular, for the 2020 Financial Statements, account was taken of the supplements included in Communication from the
Bank of Italy dated 15 December 2020 with regard to the impacts of COVID-19, measures in support of the economy and
certain amendments to IAS/IFRS.

The Consolidated financial statements are made up of the Balance sheet, the Income statement, the Statement of
comprehensive income, the Changes in shareholders’ equity, the Statement of cash flows and the Notes to the financial
statements and the related comparative information; the Report on operations on the economic results achieved and on the
Group’s balance sheet and financial position has also been included.

In support of the comments on the results for the year, the Report on operations also presents and illustrates reclassified
income statement and balance sheet schedules. The reconciliation with the financial statements, as required by Consob in its
communication 6064293 of 28 July 2006, is included in the Attachments.

The Report on operations contains financial information taken from or attributable to the Consolidated financial statements, as
well as other information — for example, figures on quarterly trends, and other alternative performance measures — not taken
from or directly attributable to the Consolidated financial statements. In this regard, see the chapter Alternative Performance
Measures in the Report on operations; please note that in the aftermath of the COVID-19 epidemic, no new measures have
been added, nor have any changes been made to the measures normally used.

In relation to the COVID-19 pandemic, following the instructions provided by the Authorities in 2020, it is noted that in the
Report on operations, both in the chapter “Overview of 2020” and in Part A and Part E of the Notes to the financial
statements, detailed information has been provided on the business environment, the impacts on the business and the
choices made in relation to the valuation of assets for the purposes of the 2020 Financial Statements.

Information on corporate governance and ownership structures required by Art. 123 bis of the Consolidated Law on Finance is
set forth, as permitted, in a separate report, approved by the Board of Directors and published together with these financial
statements, which can be viewed in the Governance section of the Intesa Sanpaolo website, at
www.group.intesasanpaolo.com.

The Consolidated Non-financial Statement prepared pursuant to Legislative Decree 254 of 30 December 2016, which
describes the environmental, social and personnel-related matters, has been published — as permitted — as a separate report
together with these financial statements and is available for consultation in the Sustainability section of the same website.

The information on remuneration required by Art. 123 of the Consolidated Law on Finance and the disclosure required by
Basel Pillar 3 are also published and made available on the website in accordance with the related approval processes.
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Income statement figures and alternative
performance measures ¢

Changes

Consolidated income statement figures (millions of euro) (Net of UBI Group)

amount %

65 0.9

7,005

-380 -4.8

Net interest income

Net fee and commission income

7,962
10
Income from insurance business 75 5.9
1,268
Profits (Losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated 131 487 253
at fair value 1,928
17,409 1,614
Operating income 55 an
18,167
Operating costs -321 -3.4
-9,407
729
Operating margin -437 -5.0
8,760

2,071 99.1
-2,089
:
1,075

Net adjustments to loans

Income (Loss) from discontinued operations

88
Net income (loss) - -2,011 -48.1

4,182

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation. The figures concerning UBI Group have not been restated.

Quarterly development of main consolidated income statement figures (millions of euro)

Operating income Overating costs _ ' '
P & Operating margin Net income
4,251 17,409
4,083 .
. 2,487 9,086 sy LT 8323
21% : | 1415 507 2,171
220 N | 1,151 —
= = o -T2 g
‘.
la 22 3@ 4 1 20 3 4 Y 1 2a 3 4 Y
10 20 30 4 FY
2020

(Consolidated figure net of UBI Group) _
2020 (Figure of UBI Group) |:|

2019 (Consolidated figure)

(*) For more detailed information on the Alternative Performance Measures, see the specific chapter of the Report on
Operations.

22



Mainincome statement figures by businessarea (*) (millions of euro)

Operating income

300
5305
100 N

1,998

194+ [

1,971

8,392

4,105

oy

Operating margin

3012 [N

3,101

327 [

2,957

1,007

1340 [

1,357

Lots [

(*) Excluding Corporate Centre

Banca dei Territori

IMI Corporate &
Investment Banking

International
Subsidiary Banks

Private Banking

Asset Management

Insurance

UBI

Banca dei Territori

IMI Corporate &
Investment Banking

International
Subsidiary Banks

Private Banking

Asset Management

Insurance

uBl

Operating costs

I ; ocs
5,291
. oo

1,148

o5

991

|

614

I 156
157

B 221

224

I sss

Net income (loss)

-677

1,000

N :s75

1,830
W +3
723

I 572

918

Il s

518

Il sss

661

. 06

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents. The figures concerning UBI Group -

relating to 2020 only - have not been restated.

2019
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Balance sheet figures and alternative
performance measures®

Changes
Consolidated balance sheet figures (millions of euro) (et el W Crens)
amount %
15,336
Financial assets -154 -0.1
146,570
Financial assets pertaining to insurance companies measured
P g P 2765 6,734 4.0
pursuant to IAS 39 (3 G
Loans to customers 6,595 1.7
395,229
Total assets - 53,602 6.6
816,570
Direct deposits from banking business - 31,457 7.4
425,512
Direct deposits from insurance business and technical reserves 6,661 4.0
165,945
Indirect deposits: 17,385 33
534,456
72,817
of which: Assets under management 358.105 11,407 3.2
Shareholders' equity 8,381 15.0
55,968
i I
(Consolidated figure net of UBI Group)
31.12.2020 (Figure of UBI Group) [ ]
31.12.2019 (Consolidated figure)
Main balance sheet figures by business area (*) (millions of euro)
Loans to customers Direct deposits from banking business
207,533 Banca dei Territori I, 229,677
194,358 199,256

135,004 IMI Corporate & I 88,183
131,884 Investment Banking 86,850
36,079 International I 46,308

34,038 Subsidiary Banks 43,420
9,853 . 41,145
9,329 Private Banking 39,537
452 | 14
435 Asset Management 10
- Insurance :
59,748 UBI I 63,030

(*) Excluding Corporate Centre

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations. The figures
concerning UBI Group - relating to 31.12.2020 only - have not been restated.

31.12.2020 I

31.12.2019

(*) For more detailed information on the Alternative Performance Measures, see the specific chapter of the Report on
Operations.

24



Other alternative performance measures®

Consolidated capital ratios (%)

Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) net of regulatory adjustments/Risk-weighted
assets (Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio)

I

13.9%
I
TIER 1 Capital / Risk-weighted assets 16.9%
15.3%
— I ;s
Total own funds / Risk-weighted assets ’
17.7%
I, :: 7

Risk-weighted assets (millions of euro)

298,524

Absorbed capital (millions of euro)

Risk-weighted assets by business area (*)
(millions of euro)

77,668 I

86,829 Banca dei Territori
97,976 [N | |\ Corporate &
99,810 Invest. Banking
32,886 _ International
32,916 Subsidiary Banks
L Private Banking
9,184
1,354 I Asset Management
1,446

Insurance

60,103 NN s

(*) Excluding Corporate Centre

I s

28,280

Absorbed capital by business area (*)
(millions of euro)

6,672
7,459
8,419
8,578

5,386

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations.The

figures concerning UBI Group - relating to 31.12.2020 only - have not been restated.

31.12.2019

(*) For more detailed information on the Alternative Performance Measures, see the specific chapter of the Report on

Operations.

25



Information on the stock

Number of ordinary shares (thousands)

Share price at period-end - ordinary share (euro)
Average share price for the period - ordinary share (euro)
Average market capitalisation (million)

Shareholders' equity (million) ©

Book value per share (euro) ©

Long-term rating

Moody's

Standard & Poor's Global Ratings
Fitch Ratings

DBRS Morningstar

(*) Book value per share does not consider treasury shares.

2020

19,430,463
1.910
1.800

34,961
65,871

3.425

2020

Baal
BBB
BBB-
BBB (high)

2019

17,509,728
2.349
2.108

36,911
55,968

3.219

2019

Baal
BBB
BBB
BBB (high)

Consolidated profitability ratios (%)

Cost / Income @

I

51.8
- 5.9
Net income / Shareholders' equity (ROE) *
8.8
| 0.3
Net income / Total assets (ROA) © 05

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations. The figures concerning UBI Group have not

been restated.

(a) Consolidated figures net of UBI Group.

(b) Ratio of net income to shareholders' equity at the end of the period. Shareholders' equity does not take account of AT 1 capital instruments or the income for the period.

(c) Ratio between net income and total assets.

2020 (Income statement figures) _
31.12.2020 (Balance sheet figures)

2019 (Income statement figures)
31.12.2019 (Balance sheet figures)
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Earnings per share (euro)

Basic earnings per share (basic EPS)

Diluted earnings per share (diluted EPS) ©

Consolidated risk ratios (%)

Net bad loans / Loans to customers

1.7

Cumulated adjustments to bad loans /
Gross bad loans to customers

I ;- -

65.3

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations. The figures concerning UBI Group have not

been restated.

(d) Net income (loss) attributable to holders of ordinary shares compared to the weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares. The figure for comparison is not

restated.
(e) The dilutive effect is calculated with reference to the programmed issues of new ordinary shares.

(f) Consolidated figures net of UBI Group.

2020 (Income statement figures) _
31.12.2020 (Balance sheet figures)

2019 (Income statement figures)

31.12.2019 (Balance sheet figures)

Operating structure 31.12.2020
Number of employees (g) 105,615
Italy 82,778
Abroad 22,837
Number of financial advisors 5,616
Number of branches (h) 6,314
Italy 5,299
Abroad 1,015

31.12.2019

89,102
65,705
23,397

4,972

4,799
3,752
1,047

Changes
amount

16,513
17,073
-560

644

1,515
1,547
-32

Figures restated, where necessary and material, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation. The table sets out for 2020 the consolidated

figures, including the UBI Group. The figures relating to the UBI Group were not restated.

(g) The workforce indicated refers to the exact number of employees at the end of the period, counting part-time workers as equal to 1 unit. The figures
as at 31.12.2020 include 19,474 employees of UBI (19,468 in Italy, 6 abroad, 7 atypical contracts) and 698 financial advisors of IWBank. This figure

includes the employees of the branches that are to be sold as part of the acquisition of the UBI Group.

(h) The figure includes Retail Branches, Non-Profit Sector Branches, SME Branches and Corporate Branches. The figures as at 31.12.2020 include
1,764 branches of UBI in Italy and 1 branch abroad. This figure includes the branches that are to be sold as part of the acquisition of the UBI Group.

27






Overview of 2020

The aftermath of the COVID-19 epidemic

Economic trends

The COVID-19 pandemic has massively disrupted the global economy. The containment measures adopted triggered a
recession of unprecedented severity and speed in the first half of 2020, followed by a major rebound and another slowdown in
the fourth quarter. China recovered to pre-crisis levels of activity already during the year, but many advanced countries are
still a long way from full recovery. In the US, the fall in GDP was 3.5%. The shock from the pandemic also affected the
emerging economies. In the regions with Intesa Sanpaolo subsidiaries, GDP is estimated to have fallen by more than 4% in
Central and South-Eastern Europe, and around 4.5% in Eastern Europe, with performance of the individual countries ranging
from -0.9% in Serbia to -8.4% in Croatia, in the first region, and from -4.4% in Russia to -6.5% in Moldova, in the second
region. In contrast, growth in Egypt remained positive in the first three quarters (+0.9%).

In the Eurozone, GDP fell by 6.6 percentage points. The negative economic repercussions of the pandemic have been
mitigated by fiscal measures that include aid to households, strengthening of social security mechanisms, tax payment
deferrals, guarantees for bank credit, and, in some countries, aid to businesses that suffered revenue losses in 2020. The
European Union has also launched several financial support measures: an ESM (European Stability Mechanism) credit line,
which can reach up to 2% of each member state’s GDP; a fund (SURE) for the refinancing of employment support
programmes; and a guarantee fund for loans granted by the European Investment Bank. In addition, a new recovery plan has
been launched, Next Generation EU, which will finance reforms and projects through grants or soft loans from 2021.

The European Central Bank has supported the fiscal effort mainly by implementing an extraordinary expansion of the
securities purchasing programmes and relaxing conditions on long-term refinancing programmes. Supervisory rules were
temporarily eased to prevent pro-cyclical rationing of bank credit. The increase in excess liquidity kept the €STR (euro short-
term rate) below the official rate on deposits with the Eurosystem (-0.50%), while swap rates fell significantly compared to
December 2019.

Italian GDP also contracted sharply in 2020, by around 8.9 percentage points. The impacts on the different sectors varied: at
the end of the third quarter, construction had more than recovered its pre-crisis levels, while manufacturing and services had
respectively made up 85% and 65% of the loss in added value. The need to counteract the negative economic and social
effects of the pandemic drove the government borrowing requirements up to 159 billion euro in 2020, an increase of 117
billion euro on 2019. The corresponding increase in public debt was not reflected in pressure on risk premiums, because it
was indirectly, but almost fully covered, by the increase in the Eurosystem’s portfolio of Italian government bonds. The BTP-
Bund 10-year spread fell from 155 basis points in December 2019 to 122 basis points in December 2020.

In the Italian bank lending market, unlike in other crises, there was no supply shock, thanks to the policy measures supporting
liquidity and lending. The demand shock had contrasting effects, negative for loans to households, which slowed down from
March, and positive for loans to businesses, which have started to rise again. The performance of loans to businesses has
been driven by liquidity needs and government-guaranteed loans, which reached almost 100 billion euro at the year -end for
SMEs and 20 billion euro for large-sized companies. The moratoria attracted 2.7 million applications from businesses and
households for a loan volume totalling around 300 billion euro. As a result, loans to non-financial companies had grown by up
to 8.5% year-on-year in December. In contrast, the growth in loans to households slowed down, particularly for consumer
credit, while the stock of loans for home purchases held up well. With regard to credit quality, banks continued their derisking,
which accelerated towards the end of the year with significant sales and securitisations. Customer deposits saw a
strengthening of the trends underway prior to the onset of the crisis. Current accounts gained even more momentum, having
grown by up to 14% at the year end. The robust increase in deposits was driven by the climate of uncertainty and risk
aversion, which resulted in a strong preference for liquidity, lower consumption levels and higher propensity to save. In
addition, there was strong growth in deposits from non-financial companies, fuelled in part by the increase in bank debt.
Assets under management showed good resilience. For mutual funds, significant outflows in the first quarter, linked to the
collapse of the stock market indices due to the adverse economic consequences of the pandemic, were followed by robust
inflows in the subsequent quarters, leading to positive net inflows at the end of the year. Life insurance, on the other hand,
saw a fall in new business compared to 2019, which was particularly sharp for traditional policies and much smaller for unit-
linked policies.
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Business continuity and the actions taken in relation to the Group’s stakeholders

From the very beginning of the dramatic public health and social emergency that swept lItaly, Intesa Sanpaolo has been
committed to tackling the situation effectively, whilst ensuring the continuity of its processes and services. In view of the
worsening risk scenario and to strengthen its preventive countermeasures, the Parent Company immediately set up its own
Emergency Unit to identify specific mitigation strategies and related lines of action, as well as ensuring ongoing monitoring of
the situation, at individual Group Legal Entity level, both in Italy and abroad.

From September, the Emergency Unit enhanced its coverage of the UBI Group, extending the strategies, mitigation actions
and monitoring of the epidemic to all the UBI structures.

With regard to the level of maturity of the operational model for the handling of the pandemic, in September Intesa Sanpaolo
obtained the DNV “MY Care” certification, which underlined the validity and effectiveness of the model implemented,
distinguished by the excellent risk mitigation approach adopted, aligned to the best national and international best practices,
not only within the finance industry.

The activities coordinated by the Emergency Unit include the close collaboration initiated with the Sacco Hospital in Milan for
scientific research on the virus, which has enabled the creation of a joint project for the genome sequencing and geographical
mapping in Italy of SARS-CoV-2, the agent of COVID-19, and the reconstruction of the origin and the methods of the spread
of the virus within the Italian population.

With regard to the management of the mitigation activities identified by the Emergency Unit, to speed up escalation
procedures and improve the effectiveness of the decision-making process, the Bank has set up two operational task forces,
with representatives from all head office structures and business divisions, focused on two specific areas: security and
communications and business continuity.

Security and communications

This task force has been set up to take all necessary actions to ensure the protection of personnel, customers and suppliers,
as well as communications to internal and external stakeholders.

It has regularly collected information on the development of the situation, both through external sources, which are used to
produce forecast scenarios of the evolution of the epidemic, and from internal sources (attendance levels, travel trends, etc.).
The safety of personnel has been pursued not only by providing personal protective equipment where necessary, but also
through preventative actions such as limiting travel, encouraging smart working, and distancing measures. Inside premises,
offices and branches open to the public, the minimum distance of one metre must always be observed and all possibilities for
gatherings are avoided. All premises are also cleaned frequently, in accordance with the instructions issued by the Ministry of
Health.

Employees who test positive for the virus are continuously monitored during the course of the illness, providing guidance on
the procedures to be adopted, also with the assistance of the Internal Occupational Health Function. Personnel who have
been in “close contact” with positive cases must stop working at the company offices; access is then prohibited to the
premises concerned and they are disinfected before they can be used again. A medical screening questionnaire has also
been developed, to be completed by employees before returning to their offices after an absence of 15 days.

A contagion risk model has been developed in collaboration with the Parent Company’s Enterprise Risk Management
Department, to implement the personnel protection strategies, that supports the decision-making for the measures to be
adopted at the Group’s premises (branch operations by appointment, branch closures, reduction of occupancy in company
premises, etc.) in line with the evolution of the epidemiological risk in the regions and provinces. With a view to prevention, an
operational plan has also been drawn up to respond to possible evolution scenarios, prioritised based on impact and
probability of occurrence, with the related containment measures. As a result, guidelines were established during the various
phases of the pandemic for the gradual return of employees to the head offices in compliance with the safety regulations. To
this end, a new re-entry planning tool has been developed that provides centralised monitoring of the occupancy of the
premises where the Group operates.

As a further health protection measure for staff, a voluntary vaccination campaign was launched in November to provide flu
and pneumococcal vaccines to employees.

In terms of internal communications, a special section has been set up in the company intranet, in addition to sending text
messages and e-mails to all staff providing updates and operational instructions, particularly at critical times.

Regular communications were also sent to suppliers, customers (on the showcase website, at branches, etc.) and the media,
and the authorities, institutions and trade associations have been continuously updated.

In the face of growing threats of online fraud exploiting the current emergency situation, we have produced customer-specific
communications with practical advice on how to avoid falling victim to this type of attack.

Business continuity

The main solutions adopted to deal with the emergency, mitigate the risk, and ensure continuity of service, related to remote
working, measures adopted at the branches, process digitisation, and actions taken on the systemic processes.

Remote working is considered the most effective solution to ensure the health of staff. This method of working was already
well-established within the Group and in response to the emergency it was extended to almost all the staff in the head office
functions. The online branch staff and part of the “physical” branch staff have also been set up so they can do their work from
home. Measures have also been implemented to make remote working more secure by using instruments to increase the
level of protection and improve the security of access to the corporate network.

For the Local Branch network, a uniform approach has been identified at national level for opening hours, selective closures
of the smaller branches and methods of delivery of services. Access to the branches has been organised in accordance with
precise rules on social distancing and the number of employees and customers in the premises, to ensure the protection of
their health. This approach is adapted over time based on the different government measures and the course of the
contagion.

Again with a view to protecting public health, of both personnel and customers, measures have been implemented to facilitate
digital interaction with customers, by improving the remote offering and expanding the contract dematerialisation and remote
signature processes, with consequent investments to enhance the channels for remote contact with customers (call centres
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and digital apps) and strengthen cybersecurity in relation to fraud prevention. Changes have been made in the process
digitisation that enable the remote provision of internal operations and services to customers, including the renegotiation of
mortgages to private individuals, suspension of mortgage and loan payments, and divestments for customers the MyKey
remote service.

Lastly, for the systemic processes, the Group’s Business Continuity Plans (BCPs) were used as the starting point to analyse
all the critical activities and emergency solutions relating to the unavailability of premises and personnel, giving priority to the
structures overseeing the processes (Treasury, Operations, Information Systems and Cybersecurity, and Business Continuity
Management) and the entities/structures operating in the markets (IMI Corporate & Investment Banking Division, Eurizon,
Fideuram, and Insurance).

The main secondary emergency sites have been set up, which can host the operation of the systemic structures and the
structures that have access to the markets, where necessary.

The staff of the units that carry out critical activities, of the structures responsible for systemic processes, and of the structures
that operate on the markets, have been enabled and set up to work from home. Where physical presence is required, the staff
have been divided into groups that go the offices in turns, without ever meeting each other.

Lastly, an assessment of the ability of critical suppliers to cope with the emergency was carried out and monitored over time,
which confirmed they met the Group’s requirements.

Actions in support of households and businesses

Intesa Sanpaolo is fully aware of its responsibility as a major bank in a situation of long, profound emergency, which is in
many ways unknown. Accordingly, from the outset, the Bank has taken numerous actions to support the efforts of institutions
and society to combat the COVID-19 pandemic.

On 18 March, Intesa Sanpaolo made 100 million euro available to the Department of Civil Protection and the Extraordinary
Commissioner with the signing of a Protocol agreement, taken from existing funds earmarked for charitable actions, to
support activities aimed at containing and overcoming the spread of the COVID-19 virus. A few days after having signed the
Protocol, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group agreed a series of measures to combat the health emergency with the Extraordinary
Commissioner, Domenico Arcuri, and with Angelo Borrelli on behalf of the Department of Civil Protection. Under this
agreement, donations of 88.5 million euro were managed through the Department of Civil Protection, and 11.5 million euro of
donations were allocated directly by Intesa Sanpaolo to specific beneficiaries (ASST Papa Giovanni XXIII of Bergamo and the
Veneto Region). As a result, an addendum to the Protocol agreement was signed to reduce the contribution to the
Department of Civil Protection and the Extraordinary Commissioner, from the original 100 million euro to the final amount of
88.5 million euro, which has been fully disbursed in accordance with the procedures and purposes set out in the Protocol
agreement.

At the beginning of June, a little more than two months after the signing of the Protocol Agreement with the Extraordinary
Commissioner and the Department of Civil Protection, the 100 million euro donated by Intesa Sanpaolo was allocated in full to
the Italian health care system to deal with the Coronavirus emergency, providing significant and structural support to
strengthen the National Health System.

Numerous actions have been carried out at national level. Specifically, 53.5 million euro have been allocated to the purchase
of medical equipment requested by the Extraordinary Commissioner, in agreement with the Department of Civil Protection, to
be assigned to health facilities and public entities throughout Italy based on the demands of the health emergency. In
addition, 46.5 million euro have been allocated to specific health facilities for projects related to the COVID-19 emergency and
for the reimbursement of purchases of equipment, diagnostic tools and other medical material already made by the health
facilities. In terms of geographic allocation, these specific actions were distributed as follows: 68% to Northern Italy, 15% to
the Centre and 17% to the South. A total of 16 hospitals and 3 newly created Covid Emergency Centres in eight Italian
regions benefited from the donation, which was one of the largest in Europe. In particular, a total of 36 new facilities were
created consisting of new healthcare wards, wards repurposed for COVID-19 emergency management and specialist
diagnostic laboratories, in addition to around 500 new beds, mainly for intensive and sub-intensive care. The work carried out
so far has resulted in the provision of over 3,000 medical and diagnostic devices needed for patient management, including
pulmonary ventilators, CPAP helmets, respirators, infusion pumps, cold nebulising systems, high flow monitors and
humidifiers, CT scans, ultrasound scanners, and reagents needed to produce diagnostic kits. Intesa Sanpaolo has also
contributed to ensuring the safety of doctors and healthcare workers by donating over 63 million items of personal protective
equipment, such as masks, gloves, overalls and gowns.

In the wake of an epidemic that has had a severe impact on the Italian population and in expression of solidarity for all the
families that have lost their loved ones, Intesa Sanpaolo strived to ensure effectiveness and timeliness in identifying the health
facilities that would benefit from the medical resources and supplies so urgently needed in the emergency.

The following healthcare facilities have benefited from the measures adopted by Intesa Sanpaolo:

—  Lombardy: Ospedale San Raffaele, Humanitas premises in Rozzano (Mi), Bergamo and Castellanza, Grande Ospedale
Metropolitano Niguarda, Ospedale Papa Giovanni XXIII of Bergamo, ASST degli Spedali Civili in Brescia, Ospedale San
Gerardo in Monza, and Policlinico San Matteo in Pavia;

—  Veneto: ULSS 9 Scaligera (Verona) and Veneto Region (Azienda Ospedaliera of Padua, Azienda Ospedaliera of Verona,
ULSS 1 - Dolomites (Belluno), ULSS 2 - Marca Trevigiana (Treviso), ULSS 3 - Serenissima (Venice), ULSS 4 - Veneto
Orientale (Venice), ULSS 5 - Polesana (Rovigo), ULSS 6 - Euganea (Padua), ULSS 7 - Pedemontana (Vicenza), ULSS 8
- Berica (Vicenza), and ULSS 9 - Scaligera (Verona);

—  Piedmont: Istituto di Candiolo IRCCS (Turin), ASL3 and ASL4 in Turin;

—  Emilia-Romagna: Policlinico S. Orsola-Malpighi in Bologna;

— Lazio: Bio-Medical Campus, University of Rome;

—  Abruzzo: Presidio Ospedaliero - ASL Teramo;

—  Campania: Azienda Ospedaliera Dei Colli (Naples) - Ospedale Cotugno and Ospedale Monaldi;

—  Sicily: Ospedale San Giovanni di Dio in Agrigento, Ospedale Giovanni Paolo Il in Sciacca and Ospedale Fratelli
Parlapiano di Ribera.

These actions were accompanied by a contribution of 350,000 euro for the construction of the ANA (National Association of
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Alpine Regiments) field hospital at the Bergamo Exhibition Centre and 50,000 euro for the “Abitare la Cura” fundraising
campaign launched by Eco di Bergamo, Caritas Diocesana, and Confindustria Bergamo. Intesa Sanpaolo provided its
services as the lead bank in support of the commercial operations, offering its advice and knowledge of the international
network to the Extraordinary Commissioner to help him perform his crucial role in the procurement of the medical materials
needed to manage the current emergency.

Intesa Sanpaolo, in collaboration with Caritas and the Calzedonia Group, also delivered eleven thousand undergarments to
several hospitals in Lombardy and Veneto to be distributed urgently and free of charge to hospitalised COVID-19 patients who
were unable to receive these items from their families because they were in quarantine. Some of the garments were
purchased by Intesa Sanpaolo and some were donated by the Calzedonia Group. The hospitals involved were: Papa
Giovanni XXIII in Bergamo, Spedali Civili in Brescia, Hospitals of Cremona, Oglio Po and Nuovo Robbiani in Soresina in the
province of Cremona, and Azienda Ospedale - Universita di Padova in Padua.

In March this year, Intesa Sanpaolo Innovation Center and the Infectious Diseases Laboratory of the Luigi Sacco Biomedical
and Clinical Sciences Department of the State University of Milan (Sacco Hospital) initiated a close collaboration for the
genome sequencing and geographical mapping in Italy of SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19, and the
reconstruction of the origin and the methods of the spread of the virus within the population in Italy. Intesa Sanpaolo has
provided expertise and human capital in the areas of IT, statistics and data science together with greater computing power.
This research environment (servers, databases, user access, licences and IT tools) has led to the development of
programming codes to automate a significant part of the research.

In view of the difficult situation, the Managing Director and CEO, Carlo Messina, gave up 1 million euro of the bonus that he
would have been entitled to under the 2019 incentive system, to allow Intesa Sanpaolo to make donations in support of
specific health initiatives. The 21 top managers who report directly to him also gave up part of their remuneration to contribute
to similar donations, totalling around 5 million euro of the bonuses they would have been entitled to under the 2019 incentive
system. The Board of Directors, which appreciated and welcomed the decision made by the management, in turn gave up a
part of their remuneration to contribute to further donations. In addition, when the variable portion of remuneration is awarded,
all Group employees were able to contribute with donations in support of specific health initiatives through a special platform.
A fundraising campaign was also launched for citizens and businesses on Intesa Sanpaolo’s digital platform
www.forfunding.it, which raised 3.5 million euro through all the initiatives conducted in partnership with other Associations,
including 2.3 million euro from Intesa Sanpaolo’s crowdfunding campaign aimed directly at the Department of Civil Protection
and linked to the donation. A donation of over 1 million euro was made out of this amount — through the partnership
established with the Gucci group, and again in agreement with the Department of Civil Protection — to the research project
being conducted by the Ospedale San Matteo in Pavia, the leader of an Experimental Medical Protocol for the use of
hyperimmune plasma for the treatment of COVID-19 patients.

The Group has also implemented a series of actions and initiatives to support the economic and social recovery of the
communities where it operates. These include the project launched with the Town of Bergamo, known as the “Renaissance
Programme”, which provides 30 million euro, through grants and impact loans, to support micro and small enterprises and
small commercial and craft businesses in Bergamo that are experiencing difficulties during this recovery phase and do not
benefit from measures or subsidies provided by central or regional institutions. The Programme provides concrete support to
Bergamo’s local economy, to help companies meet the costs incurred during the lockdown and make the investments needed
for the recovery, and is also aimed at encouraging sustainable mobility measures for travel between home and work.

In a similar vein to Bergamo, the following actions were initiated:

—  The “Rinascimento Firenze” Programme aimed at supporting the revival of the city’'s economy through impact lending,
developed and promoted in collaboration with Fondazione CR Firenze, which provides 50 million euro — through grants
and impact loans — to support small and medium enterprises operating in the sectors of arts and crafts, tourism and
culture, fashion and lifestyle, start-ups and agro-industry in the metropolitan area of the city of Florence. It is aimed at
businesses that were healthy before the pandemic, which have suffered in recent months and intend to relaunch their
operations by investing in projects that have a measurable social impact, such as stabilising or increasing their staff
numbers, making investments under the new health regulations, and promoting forms of networking between competing
businesses to increase the network’s resilience;

— locally-based programmes have been launched (Vigevano Solidale and Torino Fondo Sorriso) aimed at households and
micro-businesses, to contain the current social and economic emergency linked to unemployment and loss of work and
revenue, caused by the pandemic. The programmes involve the provision of impact loans by the Group backed by a pre-
established solidarity guarantee fund.

For these initiatives, the Bank has also provided the possibility for private individuals to participate in dedicated
fundraising through the Forfunding platform;

—  support to the Autonomous Region of Sardinia: Intesa Sanpaolo has been awarded the international tender, launched by
the European Investment Bank, for the management of a share of an EFSI (European Fund for Strategic Investments)
fund with a total budget of 100 million euro. The share managed by Intesa Sanpaolo amounts to 33 million euro and the
Bank intends to use these funds to promote economic recovery, by enhancing financial solidity and counteracting the
effects on the Region produced by the containment measures connected to the COVID-19 epidemiological emergency.
The tourism services sector will be allocated 40% of the funds available.

The solidarity initiatives aimed at supporting the difficult and delicate recovery following the health emergency also included

the aid offered by Intesa Sanpaolo through other major interventions:

— the “Ricominciamo insieme — sostegno alle generazioni nella famiglia” project, with a grant of 5 million euro to the
Diocese of Bergamo, adding to the funds already made available by the Diocese to Caritas Diocesana, the Italian
Episcopal Conference and other bodies and private individuals for assistance to households and the relaunch of
Bergamo’s economy;

— adonation of 5 million euro to the Solidarity Fund “Do.Mani alla speranza” and the Fund “In aiuto alla Chiesa Bresciana”
for the programme of measures to support households and parishes in difficulty.


http://www.forfunding.it/
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In terms of its own operations, Intesa Sanpaolo has implemented a series of extraordinary measures to support the Italian

economy and its businesses and households. First of all:

— 5 billion euro of new loans for businesses throughout the country to support working capital, provided through additional
credit lines over and above the existing facilities;

— 10 billion of liquidity for Intesa Sanpaolo customers, through credit lines already approved to them and now made
available for more extensive and flexible purposes, such as managing urgent payments;

—  the suspension for 3 months of payments on outstanding medium/long-term loans, solely for the principal amount or for
the entire payment due, which can be extended by 3 to 6 months depending on the duration of the emergency. The
suspension for the loans has also been extended to households throughout the country.

As a result of the measures approved by the government, the amount of resources in terms of credit made available to the

country was subsequently increased to 50 billion euro.

To help ensure continuity of production, in the face of the slowdown in domestic and foreign demand caused by the current

crisis, Intesa Sanpaolo has also set aside:

— a plafond of 5 billion euro to support companies and professionals associated with Confcommercio (Italian federation of
commerce and tourism) to enable the management of urgent payments and immediate liquidity needs. An agreement
has also been made with special conditions for Confcommercio members, which includes the refund of fees on micro-
payments (less than 10 euro) accepted through physical Intesa Sanpaolo POS terminals;

— a plafond of 2 billion euro for companies operating in the tourism sector to support liquidity and investment. In addition,
the possibility of suspending outstanding loan instalments has been increased up to two years, an initiative that was also
extended to the UBI Banca network already from the third quarter;

— an initiative with the craft industry association Confartigianato Imprese, aimed at enhancing the potential of craft
enterprises through actions adopted at national level to promote their growth, including a process to facilitate innovation,
sustainability and enhancement of human capital.

Furthermore, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group — through Intesa Sanpaolo RBM Salute’s experience in the health sector — has made
its new insurance solution available to members of the boards of directors, owners and employees of companies, to provide
protection and greater peace of mind if they contract the virus. Intesa Sanpaolo Assicura has also launched initiatives in
favour of its policyholders by extending its services and insurance cover to all of them free of charge. Policyholders — who are
positive for COVID-19 and who will contract the virus — will have daily hospitalisation allowances not only in the event of
hospitalisation, but also during isolation at home (quarantine), without excesses and deductibles.

Intesa Sanpaolo was the first Italian bank to sign the collaboration protocol with SACE to provide financial support to

businesses damaged by the COVID-19 emergency. Thanks to this agreement, the Bank, after having increased the amount of

credit resources available to the country to 50 billion euro, is offering all the possible solutions envisaged by the Liquidity

Decree, in order to also provide the necessary support to large companies that were not originally covered by any support

measures. This is a necessary step to help the production sectors and the supply chain made up of SMEs. Thanks to the work

coordinated by the Italian Banking Association, the Group has identified the most suitable solutions to efficiently manage
operations through its relationship managers.

In these exceptional times, Intesa Sanpaolo has also strengthened its “Sviluppo Filiere” Programme by targeting 2,500 Italian
supply chains, from all the production sectors spread throughout Italy, which will be allocated a new credit line of 10 billion
euro.

In a market made up of many small firms and a difficult environment like the current one, the strategic relationship between

the leaders of the sector and their suppliers can become an extraordinary multiplier and facilitator for access to credit for

smaller firms, by leveraging the strength and solidity of the best of Italian manufacturing.

The main initiatives supported during this difficult period included:

—  Automotive sector: a transaction with FCA (80% SACE guarantee), which represents the largest ever measure in support
of the Italian industrial sector and one of the largest measures in support of an industry sector ever implemented in the
world;

—  Gucci supply chain: for local growth projects, international expansion programmes and the renovation of production
facilities. Firms that belong to the supply chain can rapidly access a wide range of loans, at the best conditions and with
faster credit disbursement;

—  Venchi supply chain (a company with an extensive national and international presence, but with firm roots in the Cuneo
area): around 6,000 retailers located throughout Italy can benefit from this initiative.

Lastly, following the assignment by the Bank’s Shareholders’ Meeting on 27 April 2020, one million euro, equal to 16% of the
total of 14 million euro available from the Intesa Sanpaolo Allowance for charitable, social and cultural contributions, under the
chairmanship of the Board of Directors, will be allocated to COVID-19 medical research projects to combat the coronavirus
emergency. Recognised Italian universities and research bodies are applying for projects according to the standard
procedures for accessing the Allowance’s resources. Projects are identified through a selection process conducted by a panel
of experts, with precise and transparent criteria applied at each stage.

The management of the Allowance — as envisaged by Intesa Sanpaolo’s Articles of Association — is the responsibility of the
Bank’s Chairman and prioritises initiatives that encourage social inclusion, projects to combat social hardship and poverty,
projects to prevent and treat diseases, support disability and international cooperation projects.



Report on operations — Overview of 2020

Further strengthening of the solid capital position

On 31 March 2020, the Board of Directors of Intesa Sanpaolo, in compliance with the European Central Bank communication
of 27 March 2020 concerning the dividend policy in the aftermath of the COVID-19 epidemic!, decided to suspend the
proposal regarding the cash distribution to shareholders of around 3.4 billion euro, corresponding to 19.2 euro cents per
share, already on the agenda of the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting called for 27 April 2020. The Board also resolved to
submit a proposal to that Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting for the allocation to reserves of the net income for the 2019 financial
year, after the allocation of 12.5 million euro to the Allowance for charitable, social and cultural contributions.

The proposal, which was approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting on 27 April 2020, translated into a further strengthening of
the already solid capital position of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group: as at 31 December 2020 — taking into account the additional
requirements of the ECB which, as detailed below, renewed its recommendation to banks in December to exercise caution
with regard to dividends? — the Common Equity Tier 1 ratio, calculated taking into account the transitional treatment adopted
to mitigate the impact of IFRS 9, amounted to 14.7%.

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group, also thanks to its solid capital position, has prioritised, and will continue to prioritise the
generation of benefits for all its stakeholders, from the support provided to the real and social economy, to value creation and
distribution to shareholders, confirming its role as a reference model in terms of sustainability and social responsibility.

The main accounting issues within the context of the epidemic

At the beginning of 2020, the world economy was growing, albeit with a moderate slowdown, and financial intermediaries had
been progressively strengthening their solidity. This moderately positive context was completely shattered by the arrival of
COVID-19. For Europe, the first half of 2020 was dominated first by the rapid spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, then by the
most severe phase of the outbreak, followed by the progressive but constant containment of the virus over the summer,
accompanied by a gradual and significant recovery in economic and social activities. After the return to sustained economic
growth in the third quarter, helped by the support policies implemented by governments, the European Union and the
Eurosystem, the sharp rise in infections in recent months has unfortunately brought back a situation of high uncertainty, which
is affecting future growth prospects. The sudden progression of the second wave of the pandemic, prompted the whole of
Europe to reimpose restrictive measures, with differing levels of constraints, and mainly aimed at avoiding general lockdowns
by limiting the strictest measures to the areas most affected by the outbreaks, in order to allow economic and social activities
to continue as far as possible. Although the expectations regarding new vaccines give reason for cautious optimism, the
outlook for the initial months of 2021 is still uncertain.

In this scenario, the various European Regulators (in line with the US, UK and Canadian authorities) have issued a series of
measures (summarised below with regard to the accounting aspects) aimed at providing intermediaries flexibility in managing
this period of stress. In the first instance, this consists of providing their support to the measures adopted by national
governments to deal with the systemic economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, in the form of legislative payment
moratoria, in addition to similar initiatives introduced independently by banks. Banks have also been encouraged to apply
their judgement in IFRS 9 forward-looking credit assessments to better capture the specifics of this very exceptional situation.
In light of the current uncertainty, the documents published by the authorities and standard setters suggest that existing
approaches should not be applied mechanically when determining the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) according to IFRS 9 and
remind banks of the need to use appropriate judgement.

Communications from authorities, standard setters, and governments

The documents issued by the various regulators and standard setters, in terms of the accounting aspects, focused on the
following specific issues:

— guidance on the classification of loans and in particular guidelines for the treatment of moratoria;

— determination of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) according to IFRS 9 from a forward-looking perspective;

—  transparency and market disclosure;

— distribution of dividends.

A summary of the main documents covering these aspects is provided below.

On 27 March, the IFRS Foundation published “COVID-19 - Accounting for expected credit losses applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments in the light of current uncertainty resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic™. This document does not amend IFRS
9, but suggests how it should be interpreted in light of the situation resulting from the pandemic. Specifically, it clarifies that
“Entities should not continue to apply their existing ECL methodology mechanically” and recognises the difficulty of
incorporating the effects of the pandemic and the related government support into the models. Therefore, banks facing this
difficulty will need to consider post-model management adjustments. With regard to classification, it is confirmed that the
extension of moratoria to customers should not automatically mean that all their contracts have undergone a Significant
Increase in Credit Risk (SICR).

1 Subsequently amended by the “Recommendation of The European Central Bank of 27 July 2020 on dividend distributions during the COVID-19
pandemic and repealing Recommendation ECB/2020/19 (ECB/2020/35)”, which extended the period for the dividend policy from 1 October 2020 to 1
January 2021. As described in more detail below, given the lack of clear improvements in the macroeconomic environment, the ECB renewed last
summer’s advice to banks to exercise caution on dividends and share buybacks in the “Recommendation of The European Central Bank of 15
December 2020 on dividend distributions during the COVID-19 pandemic and repealing Recommendation ECB/2020/35 (ECB/2020/62)".

2 see footnote 1 above.

3 The IASB has also expressed its opinion on the deferral of lease payments, dealt with in specific documents relating to IFRS 16. This issue is
significant for lessees, whereas for lessors (like Intesa Sanpaolo) this issue is mainly addressed in IFRS 9.
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The various actions taken by the ECB include the guidance provided in its press release of 20 March “ECB Banking
Supervision provides further flexibility to banks in reaction to coronavirus”, regarding the classification and measurement of
loans. In its announcement, the ECB reassured banks that adoption of a moratorium should not be considered as an
automatic trigger of unlikeliness to pay, because the payments have been legally postponed and, consequently, the counting
of the days past due has been deactivated until the end of the moratorium. In addition, although it does not strictly come
under its area of responsibility, the ECB, within its prudential remit, expresses its views on IFRS 9 forward-looking
assessments, recommending that banks avoid excessively procyclical assumptions in their models to determine provisions. In
determining ECLs, the ECB calls on institutions to “give a greater weight to long-term stable outlook evidenced by past
experience when estimating provisions for expected credit losses”.
The ECB also sent a letter* to supervised banks to provide additional guidance and references on the inclusion of forward-
looking information in determining ECLs under IFRS 9 in the context of the COVID-19 pandemic. The letter refers to the
recommendations made by the ECB to intermediaries, namely to avoid the use of excessively procyclical assumptions, given
the extreme uncertainty of the context and in light of the unavailability of reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information: “In order to mitigate volatility in institutions’ regulatory capital and financial statements stemming from IFRS 9
accounting practices in the current context of extraordinary uncertainty we recommend that institutions i) opt to apply the
transitional IFRS 9 provisions foreseen in the CRR, and ii) avoid excessively procyclical assumptions in their IFRS 9 models
to determine their provisions”. The ECB also stresses the fundamental importance of governance in relation to the
adjustments, overlays and model updates, considered necessary in the current situation. This letter is accompanied by an
Annex, which provides guidance on the following three aspects:
—  Collective assessment of the SICR
The ECB expects significant institutions “to consider whether a top-down approach to stage transfers can be taken,
using the collective assessment, “and in the context of that approach, recognise lifetime expected credit losses on a
portion of the financial assets for which credit risk is deemed to have increased significantly without the need to identify
which individual financial instruments have suffered a SICR”.
—  Use of long-term macroeconomic forecasts
The ECB recognises the current uncertainty in making macroeconomic forecasts and therefore calls on intermediaries to
focus on long-term macroeconomic forecasts when determining IFRS 9 ECLs, using all the historical information
covering at least one or more full economic cycles. In the ECB’s opinion, the IFRS 9 provisions lead to the conclusion
that, where there is no reliable evidence for specific forecasts, long-term macroeconomic outlooks provide the most
relevant basis for estimation.
— 2020, 2021 and 2022 macroeconomic forecasts
The ECB provided recommendations on how the forecasts for the March and June estimates should be prepared (similar
guidance was also repeated for the 2020 financial statements), indicating that the macroeconomic projections produced
by its staff should be used as anchor points.

”

In relation to the above guidance, the ECB’s supervisory activities identified heterogeneous practices in its implementation
among supervised institutions and therefore decided to issue a new letter® (on 4 December 2020) reiterating the importance
of ensuring that credit risk is adequately assessed, classified and measured on banks’ balance sheets. It also recommended
the use of creditworthiness assessment procedures to allow banks to differentiate viable from non-viable debtors, in a timely
and effective manner, also taking into account the prospective expiry of the public support measures. The main objective of
this process is to contain the build-up of troubled assets and mitigate cliff effects, while seeking to avoid excessive pro-
cyclicality.

More specifically, in its letter of 4 December, the ECB identified several main areas of credit risk management that significant

institutions should focus on when applying sound policies and procedures, as summarised below:

1. classification of contract modifications: institutions must ensure that they correctly classify contract modifications
(moratoria) that qualify as concessions to distressed borrowers, by classifying them as forborne in their systems. For
changes not covered by the EBA Guidelines on this topic, institutions must assess and classify on a case-by-case basis
whether the changes meet the definition of forbearance measures;

2. assessment of unlikeliness to pay: the ECB expects institutions to perform a regular assessment of the existence of UTP
triggers for the borrowers, including exposures with payment moratoria,;

3. assessment of significant increases in credit risk and staging: the ECB recommends that institutions seek to identify
increases in credit risk at the earliest possible stage, whether using individual or collective assessments, by assessing
loans subject to moratoria more comprehensively and not using days past due as the sole criterion for identifying a SICR,
and it reminds banks of the need to use qualitative information as required by IFRS 9;

4. estimation of provisions: to ensure that levels of provisions are correctly estimated, the ECB renews its recommendation
that institutions should continue anchoring their IFRS 9 baseline scenarios to the macroeconomic forecasts published by
the central banks, while also ensuring that any adjustments and overlays are consistent with those scenarios;

5. governance and the involvement of management bodies: the ECB expects management bodies to exercise adequate
oversight over the critical elements of the management of credit risk.

On 10 December, at the side-lines of the Governing Council’s monthly meeting, the ECB published the periodic update of the
macroeconomic projections for the Eurozone prepared by its staff, with the contribution of the individual national central
banks, which contained minor deviations from the previous September forecasts. More specifically, as shown in the table
below, the Baseline scenario envisages a lower decline in GDP for the Eurozone in 2020, expected to fall by 7.3% (compared
to -8.0% forecast in September), followed by a revision of the rebound for 2021, now expected to be +3.9% (compared to
+5.0% forecast in September), offset by an improvement in expectations for 2022, which see GDP rising by +4.2% (instead of
+3.2% forecast in September). The Mild and Severe alternative scenarios also contain minor revisions with respect to the
September forecast, essentially consisting of a change in the distribution of the recovery over the three-year forecast period.

4 See ECB “Letter to banks: IFRS 9 in the context of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic” of 1 April 2020.
5 See ECB “Identification and measurement of credit risk in the context of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic”, 4 December 2020.
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“Eurosystem staff macroeconomic projections for the euro area” - December 2020

December 2020 projections
Mild scenario Baseline Severe scenario

2020 2021 2022 2023 2020 2021 2022 2023 2020 2021 2022 2023

Real GDP -7.2 6.0 4.3 21 -7.3 3.9 4.2 21 -7.6 0.4 3.0 2.9
HICP inflation 0.2 11 1.3 15 0.2 1.0 1.1 14 0.2 0.7 0.6 0.8
Unemployment rate 7.9 8.8 7.5 6.9 8.0 9.3 8.2 7.5 8.1 10.3 9.9 9.4

At the same time as the publication of the macroeconomic forecasts for the Eurozone published by the ECB, the Bank of Italy,
as part of the Eurosystem’s coordinated forecasting exercise, also published its own statement on the macroeconomic
projections for the Italian economy.

The Bank of Italy paper provides a baseline projection, which assumes a continuation of the levels of the epidemic seen in the
final months of 2020, a subsequent gradual return to control during mid-2021 and a complete end of the emergency by 2022.
After a fall in GDP in Italy of -9.0% in 2020, the baseline scenario envisages a recovery over the next three years (+3.5% in
2021, +3.8% in 2022 and +2.3% in 2023). In the short term, GDP is expected to contract in the final quarter of 2020 and
remain weak in early 2021, before starting to grow again rapidly in the middle of the year, thanks to the expected
improvement in the health situation and the effect of economic policy measures.

Compared to the baseline scenario published in the July Economic Bulletin, the upward revision in 2020 reflects the strong
performance in the third quarter, while the recovery for the following two years has been pushed back by several months. The
lower average annual figure for 2021 reflects the carry-over effect of the fall in GDP in the final months of 2020 — the growth
will be faster from the second quarter onwards and significantly stronger in 2022.

Macroeconomic projections for the Italian economy — baseline scenario

December 2020

2020 2021 2022 2023
GDP -9.0 35 3.8 2.3
Household consumption -9.0 3.6 3.0 1.7
Collective consumption 0.7 -0.5 1.0 0.4
Gross fixed investment -12.0 9.0 115 5.1
of which: Investment in capital goods -10.2 8.8 13.5 6.8
Investment in construction -14.3 9.2 8.9 2.9
Total exports -15.9 9.3 4.9 3.4
Total imports -12.4 9.7 6.2 3.2
Consumer prices (HICP) -0.2 0.5 0.9 1.2
HICP net of food and energy 0.4 0.0 0.6 0.8
Employment (hours worked) -12.8 3.7 3.8 2.4
Employment (persons employed) -1.8 -1.0 1.6 1.2
Unemployment rate 9.2 10.4 10.0 9.5

The baseline scenario is highly dependent on assumptions about how the pandemic will unfold. Lower effects from the virus

on economic activity in the latter part of 2020 and early 2021 could lead to a higher average pace of growth next year.

On the other hand, a continuation of the unfavourable effects of the pandemic at the global level, if not effectively countered

by economic policies, could pose a risk to growth prospects if it affects consumption and investment patterns, international

trade or financial conditions.

In considering this possibility, the Bank of Italy paper provides an example of the effects on GDP growth under the following

assumptions:

1) foreign demand stagnates in 2021 followed by gradual growth in the following two years;

2) the effects of the pandemic on behaviour and social distancing measures continue for a longer period, reaching a similar
intensity at the beginning of 2021 as last April and then gradually receding;

3) credit supply tightens, to a degree close to that observed during the global financial crisis.

The effects of the different assumptions on GDP growth in less favourable scenarios are detailed in the table below, which

shows the percentage differences with respect to the baseline scenario:
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Macroeconomic projections for the Italian economy - Less favourable scenarios

2020 2021 2022 2023
1 - International situation -0.1 -0.9 -0.7 -0.3
2 - Prolongation of the pandemic -0.1 -1.6 -1 -1.6
3 - Financial factors 0.0 0.9 -0.7 0.1

The EBA also provided its observations on the measures that banks were taking following the sudden onset of the COVID-19
emergency, with a series of documents published on 25 March, including in particular the “Statement on the application of the
prudential framework regarding Default, Forbearance and IFRS 9 in light of COVID-19 measures”. The aim of the EBA
document is to provide clarity to the EU banking sector on how to handle in a consistent manner, aspects related to (i)
classification of loans in default, (ii) identification of forborne exposures and (iii) accounting treatment (for Stage 2 allocation
and IFRS 9 forward-looking assessments).

The EBA then went into more detail on the aspect of classification with the publication of specific guidelines on 2 April, aimed

at identifying a simplified prudential treatment for the classification of loans that have been granted a moratorium by (and no

later than) 30 September 2020. In this regard, the EBA specified that:
adoption of a moratorium — both legislative and granted by the bank — is not a trigger of default and stops the counting of
the days past-due for the identification of default;

— with regard to considering moratoria as forbearance measures, the EBA is of the view that the concerned positions
cannot be considered as forborne, because they are aimed at addressing systemic risks and alleviating potential future
risks that may occur in the wider EU economy;

— on the possible transfer to Stage 2 of positions subject to a moratorium, the EBA clarifies that the application of a public
or private moratorium alone should not be considered as a trigger for the identification of a significant increase in credit
risk, and therefore they should not be automatically classified as Stage 2.

After closely monitoring the developments of the COVID-19 pandemic and, in particular, the impact of the second COVID-19
wave and the related government restrictions taken in many EU countries, on 2 December the EBA announced its decision to
reactivate the “Guidelines on legislative and non-legislative loan repayments moratoria”, publishing a revised version of its 2
April document by the same name.
The new edition of the EBA Guidelines envisages that banks may continue to provide support to the real economy through
new moratoria, while maintaining a high level of attention to the timely identification of situations where counterparties who are
granted the moratoria may face financial difficulties, in order to ensure that any problematic loans are promptly classified and
reflected in their balance sheets. Accordingly, in the renewed version of its Guidelines, the EBA has introduced new
constraints to ensure that the support provided by moratoria is limited to bridging liquidity shortages triggered by new
lockdowns and that there are no operational constraints on the continued availability of credit:

—  reopening the possibility of granting moratoria in accordance with the existing guidelines until 31 March 2021,

— introducing a 9-month cap for new moratoria or the extension of an existing moratorium. This cap also applies to the
granting of a further moratorium in relation to an expired moratorium, in which case the durations of the two moratoria are
added together.

The 9-month cap does not apply retroactively to moratoria granted up to 30 September, which may consequently have longer

durations (e.g. 12 months).

In view of the extension of the moratorium period, the EBA has also specified that banks will be required to notify their

competent authorities of their plan setting out the process, sources of information and responsibilities for assessing the

unlikeliness to pay of borrowers that have been granted payment moratoria (both legislative and non-legislative), while
introducing specific disclosure requirements for monitoring exposures subject to moratoria®.

6 See EBA “Guidelines on reporting and disclosure of exposures subject to measures applied in response to the COVID-19 crisis” of 2 June.
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With regard to financial reporting, mainly addressed by the ESMA, this authority first issued a recommendation on 11 March?,

providing guidelines on the impact of COVID-19 with respect to the following:

—  Market disclosure: the ESMA recommends that issuers should disclose as soon as possible relevant and significant
information concerning the impact of COVID-19 on their fundamentals, prospects or financial situation, in accordance
with the transparency obligations under the Market Abuse Regulation;

— Financial reporting: the ESMA recommends that companies should provide full transparency about the actual and
potential impacts of COVID-19, to the extent possible based on both a qualitative and quantitative assessment, on their
business activities, financial situation and economic performance.

In October, ESMA also published its annual report?, indicating the areas of particular importance for the 2020 annual reports
to be published by listed companies, with the aim of promoting consistent application of the IFRS and other financial and non-
financial disclosure requirements.

The priority areas of attention for the ESMA in relation to the IFRS, focus on the need to provide adequate and transparent
disclosure on the consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic, particularly regarding going concern assumptions and the
impairment of assets. In the current situation of uncertainty, measurements must be supported, where possible, by sensitivity
analyses, subject to specific disclosure, to provide users of the financial statements a more complete and transparent
understanding of these phenomena.

On the subject of market disclosure, the I0SCO and CONSOB also referred to the ESMA guidelines, stressing the
importance of clear, reliable and transparent disclosure that provides investors with information that helps them assess the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the income statement and balance sheet aggregates.

In addition, in its communication of 15 December 2020, the Bank of Italy supplemented the provisions governing bank
financial statements (Circular 262 “Bank financial statements: layouts and preparation”), with the aim of providing information
to the market on the effects that the COVID-19 outbreak and the consequent measures to support the economy have had on
the strategies, objectives and risk management policies of intermediaries, and on their operating performance and financial
position. The proposed actions also take into account the contents of the above-mentioned documents published by the
European regulatory and supervisory bodies and standard setters aimed at clarifying the application of the IAS/IFRS, with
particular regard to IFRS 9.

The document also contains a number of amendments to reflect changes to the IAS/IFRS that have occurred since the last
updates to the financial reporting requirements. In particular, it refers to the disclosure requirements of IFRS 7 to take into
account the effects of the “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform” in relation to hedge accounting (IBOR Reform).

Lastly, as already mentioned, in line with the measures already taken in March 2020 (ECB/2020/19) and the recommendation

issued in July (ECB/2020/35) — in which the European Central Bank announced that it would review its position in the fourth

quarter of 2020 to assess whether to issue a further recommendation to suspend dividends, in light of the economic situation,

the stability of the financial system and the reliability of capital planning — on 15 December the ECB renewed its guidance to

banks to exercise extreme caution with regard to dividends and share buybacks, recommending in particular that:

— they consider not distributing any cash dividends or to limit such distributions until 30 September 2021;

— if they still intend to distribute dividends or carry out share buybacks, they apply the lower of 15% of the cumulated profit
for 2019-2020 and 20 bps in terms of CET 1 as a criterion;

— they be profitable and have robust capital trajectories if they intend to distribute dividends, and they are expected to
contact their JST in advance to discuss whether the level of intended distribution is prudent;

—  they refrain from distributing interim dividends out of their 2021 profits.

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s approach to the preparation of the Financial Statements as at 31 December 2020

Introduction

The concepts set forth by the various authorities which have been summarised above, mainly concerning loans and aimed at
avoiding penalising positions in temporary difficulty in the presence of robust economic support programmes, have been used
consistently by the Group, also for the measurement and presentation of other items in the Financial Statements as at 31
December 2020.

However, it is important to note that the aspects discussed below and the choices made by the Intesa Sanpaolo Group need
to be viewed in conjunction with the major role that the Bank has played and will play in providing the necessary support to
individuals and businesses, as well as the significant uncertainty and volatility in the figures for this period, as clearly
highlighted by all the Authorities mentioned above. The new and exceptional characteristics of the current crisis, which are
unprecedented in the post-war period, the continued uncertainty regarding the duration of the health emergency, which may
generate economic and financial consequences for individuals and businesses, as well as the measures already devised and
being devised by governments and the European Union, which, given their size and nature, are capable of mitigating the
effects of the crisis, but which are still not yet clearly defined, especially in terms of their timing of implementation, make it very
difficult to apply accounting standards anchored to market values and forward-looking valuations.

Details are therefore provided below of the aspects of the financial statements impacted by COVID-19, based on the
framework outlined above.

7 See ESMA “ESMA recommends action by financial market participants for COVID-19 impact” of 11 March.

8 In this statement on annual financial reports, the ESMA also builds on the suggestions already provided in its statements of 25 March “Accounting
implications of the COVID-19 outbreak on the calculation of expected credit losses in accordance with IFRS 9” and 20 May 2020 “Implications of the
COVID-19 outbreak on the half-yearly financial reports”.
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Classification and measurement of loans in accordance with IFRS 9 in light of the measures issued by the various supervisory
authorities following the emergence of the COVID-19 pandemic
In terms of classification of credit exposures, the COVID-19 outbreak primarily resulted in the need, also recognised by the
banking system and institutions (governments and regulators), to offer general payment suspension measures (moratoria) to
still performing customers, using simplified procedures and without any penalties for the parties involved — both banks and
customers. These measures, partly governed by national regulations and partly decided autonomously by the banks, were the
subject of a specific regulation, summarised in the specific EBA Guidelines (“Guidelines on legislative and non-legislative
moratoria on loan repayments applied in the light of the COVID-19 crisis”). According to the EBA, for the moratoria to be
considered in line with its guidance, they have to meet some specific requirements, which may be summarised as:

—  being offered without distinction by the bank to a large group of (performing) borrowers or following legislative provisions;

— not providing a waiver of interest or principal but solely a deferral/extension of payments.

Following the activation of EBA compliant moratoria, the count of the past due for the purposes of identifying the default (with

classification as non-performing past due) is stopped. In addition, the fact that the Bank has not waived the repayment of the

interest or the principal means that the calculation of the diminished obligation for the purposes of distressed restructuring and

the resulting classification as Unlikely-to-Pay is no longer relevant. The moratorium is also not automatically considered as a

forbearance measure and therefore does not also constitute a trigger for a significant increase in credit risk with consequent

transition to Stage 2 (for Stage 1 positions) pursuant to IFRS 9. In addition, for positions towards companies with a higher risk

(identified through their rating) for which the Bank had decided to grant a moratorium, up to 30 September our Group carried

out specific assessments, to determine whether or not to consider the renegotiation as a forbearance measure.

This situation continued to apply until 30 September when, in light of the scenario of cautious optimism at the end of the

summer, the EBA decided not to extend this exceptional measure. The Authority had thus decided to return to the practice

whereby any renegotiation of loans has to follow a case-by-case approach according to the usual prudential rules, i.e. with an
analysis of whether the single measure is to be considered a forbearance and/or a default trigger. As a result, from 1 October
that test was applied to all new measures towards companies and individuals (regardless of rating and type of moratorium).

Following the second wave of COVID-19 which hit Europe in mid-October, the EBA reconsidered the issue, and in its

communication of 2 December, it:

—  re-opened the option to grant moratoria according to the pre-existing guidelines, up to 31 March 2021;

— introduced a nine-month cap for new moratoria or the extension of an existing moratorium. The cap shall also apply to
the granting of non-consecutive periods of suspension (in this case, the durations of the various periods are added
together). The 9-month cap does not apply retroactively to moratoria granted up to 30 September.

In December, the Group aligned itself to the provisions of the amendment issued by the EBA on 2 December, restoring the

framework in force as at 30 September, described above, while introducing a case-by-case assessment of the classification

as forborne for moratoria with a duration of more than nine months, as required by the EBA.

With regard to the measurement of credit exposures, the various measures adopted by the regulators in 2020, described
above, progressively strengthened and adapted the regulatory framework, which had already been clearly set out in the early
months of 2020 and was progressively refined during the year, in response to the evolution of the economic and the health
situation. For the Financial Statements at 31 December 2020, the Group has therefore decided to maintain the approaches
adopted during 2020, with the appropriate refinements and adjustments resulting from the evolution of the health crisis and
the economic scenario.

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group has therefore aligned itself to the guidance from the regulators by:

— updating the macroeconomic scenario for the calculation of the ECL (measurement of loans), in line with the guidance
provided by the ECB and the Bank of Italy at the beginning of December;

— adopting specific management overlays to include ad hoc corrective measures, not captured by the models, to better
reflect the particularities of the COVID-19 impacts in the measurement of loans.

With regard to the macroeconomic scenario, which is also used for the credit assessment, the Parent Company’s Research
Department has produced IFRS9 scenarios consistent with the scenarios (baseline, mild and severe) published in December
by the ECB and the Bank of Italy, in line with the guidance provided by the ECB in its letter of 4 December 2020 “Identification
and measurement of credit risk in the context of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic”. The scenarios were produced using
data taken from the ECB/Bank of Italy projections and internal modelling (Oxford Economics multi-country model) was used to
reconstruct the paths of the variables not provided by the Eurosystem. In fact, the Central Banks only specifically projected
the trend of some macroeconomic variables (included in the scenario) and provided an accompanying commentary that was
used as the basis for completing the projection of all the variables used in the satellite models in a consistent manner.

In particular, only the ECB and some National Central Banks (e.g. the Bundesbank) also provided alternative scenarios (best
and worst case), but only for a few fundamental variables (real GDP growth, inflation, unemployment), while the Bank of Italy
only provided a sensitivity analysis of GDP to several worst case scenarios. Accordingly, the reconstruction of the alternative
scenarios for the Italian economy has been carried out in a manner that makes them as consistent as possible with the
description of the alternative scenarios from the Eurosystem and the real growth projection for the Eurozone provided by the
ECB for each of those scenarios.

The table below summarises the macroeconomic scenarios produced and used to calculate the expected credit losses, for
which the main variables have been taken from the projections of the central banks, while the other variables have been
reconstructed by means of simulations through internal modelling, in accordance with the information available from the
publications by the central banks.



Report on operations — Overview of 2020

Intesa Sanpaolo macroeconomic scenarios for calculating the ECL in the 2020 Financial Statements

Baseline Best case Worst case

2020 2021 2022 2023 2020 2021 2022 2023 2020 2021 2022 2023

Italy Real GDP ltaly -9.0% 3.5% 3.8% 2.3% -85% 6.2% 2.5% 1.9% -9.1% -05% 2.6% 1.7%
CPI Italy -0.2% 0.5% 0.9% 1.2% -0.1% 0.6% 1.2% 1.4% -02% -0.3% 0.4% 1.0%
Residential Property Italy 24% -2.0% 0.5% 1.0% 2.7% 0.3% 2.0% 3.1% 24% -5.0% -2.7% -1.7%

10Y BTP yield 12% 08% 1.0% 12% 11% 1.0% 14% 2.2% 12% 1.0% 13% 1.7%
BTP-Bund Spread 10Y 16% 13% 15% 1.6% 16% 13% 15% 1.6% 1.7% 16% 18% 2.1%
Italian Unemployment 9.2% 10.4% 10.0% 9.5% 9.3% 10.2% 9.9%  9.5% 9.4% 11.6% 11.8% 11.5%

it'ég Real GDP EUR -7.3%  3.9% 42% 2.1% 72% 6.0% 43% 2.1% -7.6% 04% 3.0% 2.9%
CPI EUR 02% 1.0% 11% 1.4% 02% 11% 13% 15% 02% 0.7% 06% 0.8%

Equity ESTOXX 50 -5.2% 4.6% 4.0% 2.9% -1.6% 12.0% 3.6% 3.3% 55% -52% -7.0% -4.7%

Euro/$ 1.14 1.18 1.18 1.18 1.14 1.16 1.14 1.17 1.13 1.17 1.17 1.19

Euribor 3M -0.4% -05% -0.5% -0.5% -0.4% -05% -0.5% -0.2% -0.5% -1.0% -1.0% -0.9%

EurlRS 10Y -0.1% -02% -0.1% 0.1% -0.1% 0.0% 0.2% 0.8% -02% -04% -0.2% -0.2%

10Y Bund yield -0.5% -05% -0.5% -0.4% -0.5% -0.2% 0.0% 0.6% -0.5% -0.6% -0.5% -0.4%
Unemployment EUR 8.0% 9.3% 8.2% 7.5% 7.9% 8.8% 7.5% 6.9% 8.1% 10.3% 9.9% 9.4%

US Area Real GDP US -3.5% 4.2% 2.7% 2.1% -35% 5.2% 3.9% 2.5% -4.1% 0.3% 0.2% 0.2%
Equity US 10.0% 7.3% -0.4% -0.6% 15.0% 29.0% 6.2% 2.8% 9.8% -42% -4.6% -4.4%
Unemployment US 8.2% 6.5% 5.6% 4.8% 8.2% 6.3% 5.1% 4.3% 8.4% 8.7% 7.8% 6.7%

In line with the various assumptions on the evolution of the health situation and the launch of the major measures to support

the economy, the Group’s forecasts — as mentioned above based on the ECB/Bank of Italy scenario of December 2020 — are

as follows:

1. the most likely (or baseline) scenario envisages a significant recovery in Italian GDP in 2021 and 2022, with growth
slowing down in 2023 but still remaining strong;

2. the worst-case scenario, envisages a significant contraction of Italian GDP in 2020, followed by substantial stagnation in
2021 and weak recovery in the following years;

3. the best-case scenario assumes a complete reversal of the 2020 contraction already in the following two years, driven in
particular by a strong recovery in 2021.

With regard to the health situation, the best-case scenario assumes effective and rapid containment of the virus, also thanks

to the start of the massive vaccination campaigns by the European countries, while the worst-case scenario assumes another

resurgence of infections and an extension/tightening of the containment measures until mid-2021.

More specifically, the most likely (baseline) scenario assumes only partial success in containing the virus, with persistence of
infections in the coming quarters and consequent containment measures. However, these measures are expected to result in
lower economic costs than those incurred during the initial strict lockdowns and the economy should recover gradually. This
recovery is expected to be mainly concentrated in the manufacturing sector and services not affected by the pandemic
(medical and food), while other services, such as the arts, entertainment, housing and recreation will continue to be partially
limited. The transition period will last until the vaccination campaigns have reached significant critical mass, which is expected
by mid-2021.

Consequently, the most likely scenario envisages a gradual recovery over the next two years (3.5% in 2021 and 3.8% in
2022), after the fall of 9.0% in Italian GDP in 2020.

The worst-case scenario assumes that the new restrictions put in place to combat the second wave that arose near the end of
2020 will have a more damaging impact on economic activity and will not effectively contain the disease, with the possibility of
having to deal with a new wave in the first half of 2021. This new wave would require that containment measures stricter than
those of the end of 2020 be maintained. Sustained efforts to prevent the spread of the virus would continue, in any event, to
dampen activity in sectors of the economy until significant coverage by vaccines is achieved, whose effects will not be felt
before end of the year.

Accordingly, more pessimistic assumptions have been considered from an economic perspective. These include further
impacts on the confidence and spending and investment decisions of individuals and businesses, sharper falls in world trade
and bottlenecks in global value chains with a further deterioration in financial conditions, as a result of the continuation of the
epidemic or the need to combat possible new outbreaks.

The worst-case scenario essentially accompanies the sharp fall in 2020 GDP with stagnation in 2021 and a weaker recovery
in the following years.

The best-case scenario assumes a smaller decline in 2020, fully offset in the following two years. With regard to the health
situation, the best-case scenario assumes effective containment of the virus, with a strict lockdown period followed by a
gradual revival of the economies. The successful containment of the spread of the virus during the second wave is due to
rapid progress in treatment and efficient coverage by vaccines, paving the way for a gradual return to normal activity. This
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scenario does not foresee a resurgence of the virus and envisages that the economic responses from the authorities will be
very successful.

Compared to the baseline scenario, the best-case scenario assumes a stronger recovery already in 2021 driven by the clear
success of the healthcare and public support measures. In this scenario, the impacts of the pandemic are substantially offset
over the next three years. For the countries most affected by the pandemic in terms of decline in GDP in 2020, such as Italy,
the scenario assumes a more rapid rebound, as already observed between Q2 and Q3 2020.

The above scenarios were applied for the forward-looking assessments for the purposes of IFRS 9 ECL. For the international
subsidiary banks of the International Subsidiary Banks Division and Banca Intesa Russia, the assessments were made in line
with the approach adopted centrally, taking into account the lower sophistication of some of the entities.

In line with the guidance from the regulators and the best practices in the market, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group has adopted
specific management overlays to include ad hoc corrective measures, not captured by the models, to better reflect the
particularities of the COVID-19 impacts in the measurement of loans. Therefore, given that the underlying reasons continue to
apply and substance, the choices made at the time of the Half-yearly Report have been maintained. In summary:
one-off treatments to provide more granularity through extraordinary staging triggers of the impacts of the current
scenario on counterparties in the micro-sectors most penalised by the crisis, also in light of the specific analyses on
counterparties and the presence of moratoria measures;

— adoption of corrective factors on default rates to include the expected benefits of major economic support initiatives such
as government guarantees not captured by satellite models, on the one hand, and to incorporate in the models the
worsening effects of the moratoria during the period of their validity in postponing the transition to default status to future
years.

The Group’s decisions regarding these aspects, as adopted in the financial statements at 31 December 2020, are described
in more detail below. In relation to the decisions made in the Half-yearly Report, the solutions adopted are more sophisticated,
in light of the larger time frame available and the increased wealth of information that can be used.

To best capture the credit risks of the individual counterparties in the COVID-19 scenario, a micro-sector analysis was
performed in December 2020 to assess the level of risk of the micro sectors and to reclassify counterparties to Stage 2 where
necessary, resulting in a rise of the provisioning level (calculation of lifetime ECL). This analysis was conducted through a
combination of a top-down approach based on micro-sector analysis and a bottom-up approach, which takes into account the
one-to-one assessment of the individual counterparties. More specifically, corporate counterparties have been transferred to
Stage 2 when they belong to risky micro-sectors, have an unsatisfactory rating and have been granted extraordinary
measures, i.e. moratoria. For Retail and SME counterparties, the classification to Stage 2 is linked to the CRA (Credit Risk
Appetite) status, unsatisfactory rating and presence of moratoria. Additional Stage 2 classifications have been made on the
basis of single name assessments carried out by the CLO Area on the Corporate, Retail and SME segments.

With regard to the treatment in the forward-looking ECL estimate of the government guarantees and moratoria, the satellite
models obviously do not take into account the impact of the major economic support initiatives implemented by the various
countries where the Group has a credit exposure. This positive impact must be taken into account for the determination of the
ECL, as also underlined by ESMA in its document “Accounting implications of the COVID-19 outbreak on the calculation of
expected credit losses in accordance with IFRS 9” of 25 March this year: “In ESMA’s view, when making forecasts, issuers
should consider the nature of this economic shock (i.e. whether the COVID-19 effect is expected to be temporary) and the
impact that the economic support and relief measures (including debt moratoria) will have on the credit risk over the expected
life of the instruments, which include, depending on the instruments’ maturities, longer-term estimates”. The ECB has also
asked banks to “exercise an informed judgement to update those projections to reflect both the lockdowns and the severe
social distancing restrictions imposed on the various economies as well as the substantive public support measures
announced and implemented across countries”.

In particular, the system of government guarantees such as those deriving from the “Cura Italia” and “Liquidita” Decrees are
expected to have a positive impact, as they will enable banks to expand their support for the liquidity needs of businesses,
enabling at least some of them to survive the current crisis. This aspect was therefore the subject of a specific quantitative
analysis based on the detailed analyses carried out for the Credit Risk Appetite (CRA), comparing scenarios with and without
government guarantees, which supported the managerial decision to include the benefits in the reduction of default rates and
ECL estimates as at 31 December.

In addition, the effects of the moratoria in terms of shift of the expected default rates have been estimated on the basis of
specific considerations relating to the impact of the moratorium measures and the prospective defaults and, in particular, with
regard to the temporal delay of part of those defaults. More specifically, the simulations conducted in the Half-yearly Report
on the effects of the moratoria (confirmed by the final analysis) allowed for transferring to the next year (2021) part of the
defaults of the customers of the Domestic Corporate and Retail SME segments estimated by the models, whereas, in these
Financial Statements (as a result of a 2020 mitigating effect due to the lower defaults recorded in the year) the expectation
remains of a 2021 cliff effect, resulting in additional flows compared to those indicated by the satellite models, estimated
based on the updated scenario. The effect of this overlay, considered in the forward-looking conditioning in the half-yearly
report, now acts through the SICR measure, leading to an increase in transfers to Stage 2 and, consequently, in ECLs.

All of the valuation approaches described above had a significant impact on the income statement for the year.

Net adjustments to loans totalled 4,160 million euro. Of these, around 2,164 million euro related to the “COVID-19” effects,
986 million euro of which for performing loans and 1,178 million euro for non-performing loans.

For a description of the models used, see Part E - Information on risks - Credit risk of the Notes to the financial statements.

Impairment testing of goodwill and intangible assets

In the current challenging market environment, measuring the recoverable amount of intangible assets is also particularly
difficult. The COVID-19 pandemic and the related restrictions adopted by the various governments in an effort to contain its
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spread had a significant impact on the GDP of both the Eurozone and Italy in 2020. As a result, the growth estimates
originally envisaged in the Business Plan for 2020 and 2021 have proved to be no longer sustainable. The continued
challenging environment for growth in industrial production and the expectation that monetary authorities will prolong their
expansionary measures suggest that a scenario of very low interest rates is likely for quite some time.

This situation has affected the impairment tests pursuant to IAS 36, which must be carried out at least once a year to verify
the recoverable amount of the intangible assets with indefinite useful lives recognised on the balance sheet, which consist of
the brand name and goodwill for Intesa Sanpaolo. In line with the guidance issued by ESMA which views the effects of the
COVID-19 pandemic as an indicator of impairment, an impairment test on the recoverability of the value of goodwill and the
brand name was carried out for the Half-yearly Report as at 30 June 2020, which showed recoverable amounts of the various
CGUs higher than the corresponding book values. Therefore, no adjustments were made to intangible assets. In any event,
as also indicated in the Half-yearly Report as at 30 June 2020, the sensitivity analyses conducted on the main parameters
relevant for the purposes of the recoverable amount showed marginal critical issues with regard to the Banca dei Territori
CGU.

The method adopted to carry out the tests for the 2020 Financial Statements was the same as that used in previous years,
based on the calculation of the value in use, i.e. the current value of future cash flows that the Group is expected to generate.
To this end, individual estimates made internally for the period 2021-2025 have been used, which take into account the
budget data for 2021, whereas the future cash flows for the following years have been determined through inertial tracking of
the cash flows for 2021, and therefore without considering the effect of new managerial initiatives, based on the forecasts
relating to the macroeconomic scenario produced by the Parent Company’s Research Department for the period 2021-2025.
The future cash flows also take into account the estimated synergies from the integration of the UBI Group.

With regard to Banca dei Territori, as a result of the increase in the carrying amount of the CGU following the capital increase
for the Public Purchase and Exchange Offer on UBI Banca and the deterioration in the macroeconomic situation compared to
the scenario considered for the impairment testing as at 30 June 2020 — particularly with regard to the expected changes in
interest rates, estimated to be negative until the end of 2024 and only marginally positive in 2025, which were partially offset
by the positive effects of the estimated synergies resulting from the merger with the UBI Group — the impairment tests
identified a goodwill impairment loss for the CGU of 981 million euro, gross of related tax. As a result of this impairment, the
goodwill related to the Banca dei Territori CGU was fully written off. With regard to the intangible assets with finite useful lives
allocated to the Banca dei Territori CGU, i.e. the brand name, the carrying amount of 1,507 million euro was supported by a
valuation by an independent expert, which confirmed that the fair value was higher than the carrying amount.

No impairment losses were identified for the other CGUs that intangible assets with finite useful lives have been allocated to,
namely IMI Corporate & Investment Banking, Asset Management, Private Banking and Insurance, as their values in use as at
31 December 2020 were higher than their accounting carrying amounts.

The adjustment made did not have a negative impact on the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s solvency ratios, because the value of
the goodwill recognised is already fully deducted from own funds, as required by Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 of 26 June
2013 (CRR).

Lastly, with regard to the intangible assets with finite useful lives, following the acquisition of the UBI Group, new intangible
assets, all with finite lives, were recognised in 2020 as part of the Purchase Price Allocation (PPA) envisaged by IFRS 3,
relating to the acquiring activities and the asset management and insurance portfolios. The analyses performed as at 31
December 2020 did not identify any critical issues or indicators of impairment in relation to any of the Group’s intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives, including those recognised in the PPA for the acquisition of the UBI Group, and their
carrying amounts were therefore confirmed.

After the above impairment losses and the amortisation of the intangible assets with finite useful lives, the residual value of
the intangible assets as at 31 December 2020 was 5,841 million euro, of which 3,154 million euro relating to goodwiill.

A detailed description of the tests performed is provided in Section 10 “Intangible Assets”, point 10.3 of Part B of the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements, which describes the methods adopted, the activities performed and the results
obtained.

Impairment testing of equity investments and valuation of securities at fair value

Also for the impairment testing of the equity investments, in line with the ESMA guidance, the effects of the COVID-19
pandemic were considered as an indicator of impairment. Consequently, the valuation of the main equity investments was
also updated for the Financial Statements as at 31 December 2020. Specifically, in accordance with IAS 36, the Group’s
valuation policies assume that for these types of assets the recoverable amounts correspond to their values in use, which
require an estimate of the future cash flows that may be generated through the continuous use of the asset valued. A number
of prudential measures were taken to factor the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic into the assessments. In particular, where
present, the updates made available by the investees with regard to 2021 budget data or the update long-term business plans
were used, which therefore included the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on the future ability of the investees to generate
income flows. Where, on the other hand, there were no updated data that took into account the effects of the pandemic, again
on a prudential basis, the discount rate was increased by adding a scenario risk premium, as required by IAS 36. Finally, for
the valuations that had a greater correlation with the macroeconomic scenario, reference was made to sensitivity analyses in
order to appreciate the impact of alternative scenarios on the valuations carried out.

This approach was also used for the valuation of the level 3 fair value equities, whose value is linked to the prospective cash
flows generated by the investees or by specific assets in the portfolio (DCF and DDM income-based approaches or equity-
based approaches). The fair value of level 1 and level 2 fair value equities, i.e. equities that derive their value directly (listed
securities) or indirectly (convertible investments or investments closely linked to listed instruments or measured using market
multiples) from market quotations, was updated as usual by referring to market quotations.

Lastly, with regard to the investments in Funds, the valuations for the Financial Statements as at 31 December 2020 have
been updated based on the latest available NAVs, issued by the fund management companies in the second half of 2020 and
they therefore take into account the estimated effects of the pandemic on the underlying investments and future performance
of the funds. The valuations have been made on a prudent basis, also with the application of discounts in cases provided for
by the Group policies.
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Probability test on deferred tax assets

In accordance with IAS 12, the book value of deferred tax assets must be tested each year to determine whether it is likely
that taxable income will be earned in the future that will ensure their recovery.

Regarding deferred tax assets carried among the Group’s assets, also for the 2020 Financial Statements, an analysis was
conducted to verify whether the projected future income — updated to take account of changes in the reference
macroeconomic and banking scenario and the Group’s scope of operations following the acquisition of the former UBI Group
— was sufficient to ensure the recovery of those deferred tax assets and thus justify recognising and continuing to carry them
(a procedure known as a “probability test”).

The probability test was positive for all the deferred tax assets recognised in the financial statements as at 31 December
2020.

For more details see Section 11 “Tax assets and liabilities” of Part B of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Impacts of the epidemic on the operating results, business activities and risk profile

From the last week of February 2020, the health emergency generated by the pandemic still underway has affected both the
performance of the markets and business operations, with the latter penalised by the increasingly severe containment
measures imposed, which have led to the suspension of many production activities in Italy and around the world. Intesa
Sanpaolo responded very promptly to the emergency, immediately implementing a wide range of initiatives aimed at
protecting the health of the Group’s people and customers, in order to ensure business continuity and counter the social and
economic effects of COVID-19.

The main impacts on operations and the effects on business activities, operating results and the risk profile, are detailed
below.

The initiatives concerning business continuity and protection of health were implemented in the following areas:

—  prevention of workplace hazards, with the formalisation and adoption of the personal and collective protection measures
required to respond effectively to the continuous evolution of the public health requirements at national, local and sector
level in relation to the spread of the pandemic;

—  wide-scale adoption of smart working, with the associated investments in technological equipment and strengthening of
the corporate information technology network to permit simultaneous access by a growing number of users;

— enhancement of remote channels for contact with customers and implementation of measures to facilitate digital
interaction (improving the remote offering, expanding the contract dematerialisation and digital signature processes, etc.);

—  strengthening of IT security measures to reduce the risk of fraud attempts against customers;

—  revision of operational processes at the head offices and the distribution network including, for example, revision of site
access and travel management policies or changes to branch opening hours.

Many of the above measures have rapidly evolved from a tactical basis — aimed at ensuring a timely response to emergencies
— to a strategic vision oriented towards addressing structural change in work organisation, business processes, customer
interaction, business opportunities and the related risk management. One of the key indicators of this evolution is the rapid
growth in remote working, both in the sales network and the head office structures: compared to the “pre-COVID” situation,
the number of users enabled for remote working has risen from around 19,000 to around 65,500, representing around 75% of
the staff of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group and from around 2,000 to around 14,700, representing around 75% of the staff of the
UBI Group.

As a result, in the space of a few months, remote working has become a key element of a new model for work activity based
on the dual notion of strengthening individual responsibility and improving work-life balance.

In terms of staff welfare, as well as giving additional days off to Group employees working in the branch network during the
most acute phases of the emergency, the initiatives also included the recent promotion of a voluntary campaign for
employees to receive flu and pneumococcal vaccines, which saw a significant contribution from the various corporate
functions involved in procuring supplies on the market, gathering and prioritising requests and final distribution to the affiliated
medical centres throughout Italy. In the same vein, rapid tests were made available to staff at sites in areas with very high
spread of the virus.

Work has also been carried out aimed at supporting internal and external communications. At internal level, all available
channels have been used to meet requests from staff, particularly in relation to conduct to be adopted, and to provide
appropriate support in cases of acute psychological distress.

With regard to external communications, the Group opted to carry out actions that could combine the effectiveness and
recognition of its role in serving local communities. This involved urgent funding measures for medical equipment and
materials — provided to selected health facilities in the areas most affected by the epidemic — and the sponsorship of various
initiatives aimed at managing the social effects of the crisis.

As discussed in more detail below, the initiatives implemented inevitably had a significant impact on operating costs and the
capital budget. To mitigate the impact of these extraordinary expenses and strengthen the Group’s earnings profile, the cost
control and rationalisation prioritised the use of resources, while preserving the initiatives of strategic development and
evolution of the business model in view of the radically altered environment that will emerge once the health crisis has been
overcome and that, in part, is already generating significant impacts. In this context, the operating costs benefited from
changes in customer behaviour and internal operational processes. Among the areas most impacted are the costs for
business-related travel, cash transport and counting services, and mailing to customers, areas that are heavily affected by the
extensive use of digital interaction and the dematerialisation of payments and contracts, which represent cost saving drivers
that, combined with continued cost control activities, will be made increasingly stable and structural over time.

In terms of the impacts on the business, the following have been observed:

—  the extraordinary measures to support the Italian economy and its businesses and households implemented by Intesa
Sanpaolo. In fact, it was the first bank in Italy to suspend mortgage and loan instalments, before the specific regulations
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came into force, and the first bank in Italy to sign the collaboration protocol with SACE, thus providing immediate support
to enterprises under the “Liquidita” Law Decree 23 of 8 April 2020. At the end of December, around 597,000 suspension
applications had been processed, for a volume of around 73 billion euro, mainly related to the “Cura Italia” measures
provided for in Article 56 of Law Decree 18/2020. Applications from business customers accounted for around 74% in
terms of volume.

With regard to the measures to support the production system, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group has provided an overall credit
line of 50 billion euro dedicated to loans for businesses. The first bank in Italy to sign the collaboration protocol with
SACE, thus providing immediate support to enterprises under the “Liquidita” Decree. Overall, including the SME Fund as
well, around 30 billion euro in loans backed by a state guarantee has been granted to date (around 9 billion euro from
SACE and around 21 billion euro from SME Fund), plus around 5 billion euro from UBI Banca.

In addition, the August Decree established the possibility of the automatic extension to 31 January 2021, without
additional charges and unless not taken up by the customer, of the suspensions provided for by the “Cura Italia” Decree,
expiring on 30 September 2020. This decree also established the possibility of extending the transitional and isolated
non-instalment credit lines expiring on 30 September 2020. Lastly, the “Rilancio” Decree introduced a measure to
support the relaunch of the construction sector and aimed at renovating real estate in terms of energy efficiency and
seismic resistance (so-called 110% Superbonus). Specifically, the provision provides for the accrual of a tax credit of
110% for individual house owners and apartment building residents that carry out energy efficiency and seismic
resistance renovation work. The novel feature of this provision is that this tax credit can be assigned directly by the
commissioner or the executor of the work to a financial intermediary. The Group has set up specific solutions both for
individual house owners and apartment building residents, as well as businesses that use invoice discounts for the
purchase of tax credits and the related settlement, with predefined prices and a dedicated advisory service through a
partnership with the company Deloitte. The commercial offering was launched from 13 August, the date when the Italian
Revenue Agency defined the operating procedures.

The UBI Group also immediately launched initiatives to support the economy and the areas most affected, by granting
moratoria/suspension of payments (both in accordance with legislative provisions and at the Bank’s own initiative), loans
— both with a Central Guarantee Fund guarantee (up to 30,000 euro and over 30,000 euro) and with a SACE guarantee —
advances on furlough payments.

As at 31 December 2020, there was a stock of outstanding moratoria of 33 billion euro for the entire Group (of which
28 billion euro relating to the Parent Company).

With regard to the past-due moratoria, there was no increase in risk for almost all the exposures.

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group also supported the legislative and non-legislative measures adopted in the various countries
where it operates in order to combat the crisis generated by the pandemic.

— the dynamics of the asset management business have been affected both by the depreciation in the value of financial
assets and by the way relations with customers are managed, due to social distancing measures.
The Group’s response to mitigate these effects has been immediate and extensive. We immediately began an intensive
communication campaign with customers to manage emotionally-driven responses that could lead to impulsive and
detrimental behaviour, such as panic selling. We also continued the development of new investment solutions for retail,
private and institutional customers, aimed at taking advantage of the opportunities offered by the current situation. With
regard to the control of risk, we focused in particular on the management of the liquidity of the open-ended UCIs, by
setting up daily monitoring of the liquidity situation of each fund and the related redemption rates. The back-office
processes, which manage the instruments that can be activated for liquidity management, have also been strengthened.
Thanks in part to these measures, there were no particular pressures in terms of redemptions/repayments of managed
products or strains relating to the level of liquidity of the assets. As a result, the fall in assets under management was
mainly limited to the impacts resulting from the performance of the stock indices and interest rates, which came under
pressure, especially during March 2020, and then gradually climbed back to end the year with assets under management
above those in December 2019.

At the end of the first quarter of 2020, the assets under management of the Asset Management Division of Intesa
Sanpaolo had declined by 6.7% compared to the end of December 2019, but in the final part of 2020 this trend reversed
generating an annual growth in assets under management of 2.8%. For Pramerica SGR (UBI Banca Group), the
changes in assets under management compared to the end of 2019 amounted to -7.4% in March and +4.0% as at 31
December 2020;

— the management of proprietary financial investments, which continued using the approach adopted since March 2020. In

particular, as a result of the significant increase and volatility of the risk premium caused by the exceptional
circumstances generated by the pandemic, from the second quarter of 2020 the Intesa Sanpaolo Group initiated a
process of reduction and diversification of the securities portfolio with the aim of preserving the functionality of the
liquidity and investment portfolios in terms of maintaining an appropriate risk, diversification and earnings profile. As a
result of the actions described above, within the managerial risk measures — as explained in more detail below — the
average VaR in the fourth quarter decreased by 200.2 million euro, compared to the average value of 363.5 million euro
observed in the second quarter of 2020 (this effect was the result of the sales made, as well as the lower volatility in the
markets, which led to lower risk measures).
With regard to UBI Banca, following its consolidation within the Group, tactical solutions have been implemented with
regard to the managerial market risk measures in order to report those risks in Intesa Sanpaolo’s portfolio. Specifically,
the trading book is reported within the IMI C&IB Division (year-end value of around 0.8 million euro) while the HTCS
portfolio has been divided between the Group Treasury and Finance Department (liquidity portfolio) and the IMI C&IB
Division (investment portfolio). As at 31 December 2020, these portfolios respectively absorbed 0.2 million euro and 18
million euro in terms of managerial VaR.

With regard to the most significant impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on the operating income of the Group, the increases in
intermediated volumes related to the legislative and non-legislative measures implemented to combat crisis situations
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connected with the pandemic — together with the contribution from the TLTROs with the ECB, which amounted to around
70.9 billion euro as at 31 December 2020 (excluding the contribution of 12 billion euro from UBI Banca) — had a positive
impact on net interest income, amounting to 7,070 million euro over the twelve months (net of 713 million euro relating to UBI
Banca), an increase of 0.9% on the like-for-like figure of 7,005 million euro for 2019.

In contrast, net fee and commission income was negatively affected, falling to 7,582 million euro in 2020 (not including, for a
like-for-like comparison, the 721 million euro relating to the UBI Banca), compared to 7,962 million euro in 2019 (-4.8%,
amounting to -380 million euro). The decline was particularly sharp in the second quarter, coinciding with the adoption of
stricter containment measures. However, the gradual easing of restrictions from May, enabled a considerable recovery in net
fee and commission income in the following months, with a rise in the last quarter equal to 14.6% on the previous three
months of 2020 and more than 22% on the second quarter (+272 million euro and +389 million euro respectively), returning to
levels close to those earned in the same period of 2019 (-33 million euro, or -1.5%).

In terms of operating costs, the expenses incurred by the Intesa Sanpaolo Group as at 31 December 2020 for measures
related to the pandemic amounted to around 72 million euro (in addition to 115 million euro of investments), while the costs
relating to UBI in the August-December period amounted to around 8 million euro of ongoing charges. However, as noted
above, this was accompanied by measures adopted to further strengthen the control of operating costs, which resulted in a
5.4% decrease in the Group’s administrative expenses (net of UBI), amounting to savings of 141 million euro on 2019 (-3.4%,
or -321 million euro, for total operating expenses).

However, the most significant effect related to the considerable increase in the annualised cost of risk, which rose to
104 basis points in December 2020 from 53 basis points at the end of 2019, due to the adoption within the projection models
of the ECB — Bank of Italy scenarios and the managerial overlays, which led to an increase in ECL and macro-scenario add-
ons, despite default rates still remaining low. Excluding the COVID-related component, the annualised cost of risk fell to 50
basis points.

Net adjustments to loans totalled 4,160 million euro (4,214 million euro including the results of the UBI Group) almost double
the 2,089 million euro for the same period of 2019. Of these, 2,164 million euro related to the “COVID-19” effects, 986 million
euro for generic coverage of performing loans and 1,178 million euro for specific coverage of non-performing loans. These
impacts resulted from the effect on the ECL, the significant migration of positions to Stage 2 as a result of a Significant Credit
Risk Increase, and the vulnerability of the positions with moratoria. Non-performing loans were affected by the slowdown in
recovery activities and the resulting increase in the vintage of the non-performing portfolio, as well as the adjustments
connected to the significant derisking activity.

With regard to the risk dynamics, details about credit risk are provided in the paragraph “The Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s
approach to the preparation of the Financial Statements as at 31 December 2020” above and the specific disclosures in the
Notes to the financial statements, while the main impacts on the Group in the situation resulting from the COVID-19 epidemic
for the other types of risk are described below:

—  for the market risk from a management perspective, the Group continued the reduction of its securities portfolio in the
fourth quarter. For the full year 2020, the Group’s average managerial VaR was 254.8 million euro, up compared to
151.5 million euro in 2019. The performance of this indicator — mainly determined by the IMI C&IB Division — derives from
an increase in the risk measures, mainly due to the volatility in the markets as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

The fourth quarter saw a reduction in the managerial VaR compared to the previous quarter, from 277.6 million euro to
200.2 million euro (average value for the fourth quarter), mainly due to scenario rolling effects and a reduction in the
HTCS portfolio of the IMI C&IB Division.

With regard to market risk capital absorption, despite the increase in volatility, the trading book recorded only a slight
increase in its prudential requirement compared to the previous quarter. Despite an inevitable increase in the cyclical
measure (VaR), the hedging strategies have limited the exposure to the risk factors most affected by the pandemic
(sovereign and financial spreads). In detail, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s market risk weighted assets at 31 December
2020, calculated according to the internal model, amounted to 17 billion euro. This figure was in line with December 2019
despite the increased volatility that affected the financial markets during 2020;

— at the level of liquidity risk, the crisis connected to the COVID-19 health emergency resulted in the activation from March
2020 of all the necessary preventive management and monitoring measures to mitigate a potential exacerbation of the
liquidity conditions. Thanks to the high level of liquid reserves and the significant contribution of stable customer deposits,
the Group’s liquidity position always remained solid and both the regulatory indicators (Liquidity Coverage Ratio — LCR —
and Net Stable Funding Ratio — NSFR) were well above the minimum regulatory requirements throughout 2020. During
the year, the Group’s Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR), measured according to Delegated Regulation (EU) no. 2015/61
and also consolidating the UBI Group from August, amounted to an average of 159.1%. The available liquidity reserves
at the various Group Treasury departments, including the consolidation of the UBI Group from August, amounted to an
average of 143 billion euro (last 12 monthly observations) and reached a total of 195 billion euro as at 31 December
2020;

— at the level of the interest rate risk generated by the banking book, the value shift sensitivity for a rate shock of +100
basis points amounted to -1,305 million euro at the end of December 2020, compared to +394 million euro at the end of
December 2019. The change in the exposure was due to banking book management measures such as the hedging of
fixed-rate funding through cash flow hedges and the merger of UBI;

— at the level of counterparty risk, the pandemic crisis entailed an initial increase in exposures, mainly due to the decline in
Euro area interest rates and the general, significant increase in the volatility of the main risk factors. However, no critical
issues were encountered in the margining process with market counterparties, despite the sharp increase in collateral
calls, by both number and volume, during the weeks of greatest stress on the markets. Margin processes with central
counterparties also did not generate any operating issues. The situation on the financial markets gradually stabilised,
although interest rates remain at record lows, resulting in high levels of exposure to customers. With regard to the
customers of the Banca dei Territori Division, the Bank implemented the “Cura ltalia” Decree pursuant to Italian Law
Decree 18 of 17 March 2020 (a customised Italian governmental measure) for derivatives as well: in particular,
customers in the SME segments in good standing that submitted moratorium applications for their loans may also apply
for a moratorium on any hedging derivatives until the end of January 2021. At the end of December, 175 applications for
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suspension of OTC derivative payments had been received, relating to an outstanding amount of 339.8 million euro and
payments suspended until 30 June 2021 of around 4.8 million euro. The most significant transaction had an outstanding
amount of 22 million euro and suspended payments of 285 thousand euro;

—  with regard to operational risks, from the outset of the emergency the Group decided — as already noted above — to adopt
preventive initiatives to ensure business continuity, while also maintaining the maximum level of safety for its customers
and employees. This was also done in the light of the rapid development seen in the realm of cyber-threats, which seek
to exploit for fraudulent purposes the fears and sense of urgency of individuals and the opportunities offered by the
remote-banking solutions adopted by financial institutions. In particular, the business continuity plan was activated and
additional actions were immediately identified to respond effectively to the extensive spread of the pandemic (e.g.,
extension of remote working to almost all the staff of the head office functions and the online branches and part of the
staff of the “physical” branches and enhancement of IT infrastructure for remote connectivity), the digital transformation
process was expedited, moving forward significant investments intended to develop methods of interaction with
customers (e.g., expansion of the services offered via Internet and mobile banking), security infrastructure for access to
the company network and data and information protection measures were progressively enhanced to increase the ability
to respond to the sharp rise in cyber-threats and attacks (e.g., distributed denial of service and malware), and humerous
training and communications initiatives were launched to raise awareness amongst customers and employees of growing
social-engineering and phishing campaigns. The long-term sustainability of the solutions of the most critical suppliers
was also verified.

With regard to measures to protect the health of employees and customers, protective devices such as masks and
gloves were purchased and distributed, sanitising gel was supplied and company premises were periodically sanitised.
Among the various mitigation measures described above, only this latter component was considered for the purposes of
calculating the operational risk capital requirement.

In addition, from the very outset of the emergency, access to the branches has been organised in accordance with
precise rules on social distancing and the number of employees and customers in the premises, to ensure the protection
of their health. This approach was adapted over time based on the different government measures and the course of the
contagion.

A contagion risk model was also developed to protect personnel; it supports the decision-making for the measures to be
adopted, such as plans for the return of head office personnel able to perform their duties remotely to company offices in
accordance with safe distance regulations. A medical questionnaire was developed for employees to complete before
they are authorised to return to the office, in addition to a tool that can be used to plan the presence of personnel in the
office; this tool ensures centralised monitoring of total presences in the head offices.

At the end of 2020 a voluntary vaccination campaign was launched to provide flu and pneumococcal vaccines to
employees.

Overall, during the twelve months the Group preserved its sound capital base: while risk-weighted assets increased by around
49 billion euro as a result of the consolidation of the UBI Group, Common Equity Tier 1 capital increased by over 9 billion
euro, bringing the transitional Core Tier 1 Ratio to 14.7% from 13.9% at the end of 2019.
In general, in terms of impacts on the Group’s risks, it should be noted that, in view of the tension seen in the early months of
the year some indicators already reflected the negative effects of the COVID-19 scenario, whereas for others, such as certain
metrics related to credit risk, for now the negative impacts have not yet fully manifested themselves also thanks to the effects
of the extraordinary measures adopted. The extent of the impacts for the Group and any improvements or deterioration in the
coming months, will be closely related to the actual development of the macroeconomic environment, and in particular to the
evolution of the COVID-19 situation and any new tensions that may arise, as well as any new support measures put in place.

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group is carefully monitoring the development of the situation, including through specific scenario and

stress analyses used to assess the related impacts in terms of profitability and capital adequacy. These analyses have shown

that, even considering more severe scenarios than the market consensus and those considered most likely by the Central

Banks, the Group would nonetheless be able to ensure — including through specific actions — compliance with regulatory

requirements and its own stricter internally set limits.

Intesa Sanpaolo in 2020

Consolidated results

As described in detail below, the accounts of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group as at 31 December 2020 reflect the effects of the
acquisition of UBI Banca and its subsidiaries, subject to consolidation from the date of acquisition (therefore from August).
Given the particular case in question, no adjustments have been made to the historic reclassified income statement and
balance sheet data in order to retroactively reflect the effects of the acquisition. Consequently, unless otherwise indicated, the
comments on operations in these financial statements refer to the income and capital components net of the UBI Group’s
data, in order to ensure a like-for-like comparison. However, in order to improve the reader’s understanding, in the chapters
analysing the income statement figures and the balance sheet aggregates, the main amounts referring to the Group acquired
and the consolidated figure including said amounts are highlighted in the tables.

The consolidated income statement for 2020 posted net income of 3,277 million euro. The net income includes the effects of
the acquisition of UBI Banca and, in particular, the amount — as definitively determined — of the negative goodwill arising from
the business combination of UBI Banca and its subsidiaries as well as the integration charges for the acquired entity. With
regard to the acquisition, more details of which are provided in the paragraph “Accounting treatment of the acquisition” below,
we note that the amount of negative goodwill, net of the transaction costs for the Public Purchase and Exchange Offer (for the
component not attributable to shareholders’ equity) and other expenses strictly linked to the transaction, has been recognised
in the reclassified income statement caption “Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax)” for a total of 2,062 million euro.
This figure covered the significant amount of charges for integration related to the acquisition (1,378 million euro after tax).
The income statement also includes the impairment recognised on the goodwill allocated to the Banca dei Territori Division
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(912 million euro after tax), which is now fully written down, also as a result of the increase in the carrying amount of the Cash
Generating Unit following the integration of UBI Banca, as discussed above.

Without taking into account the income statement effects of the consolidation and integration of UBI Banca and its
subsidiaries and the above-mentioned goodwill impairment, consolidated net income would have been 3,083 million euro
compared to 4,182 million euro for 2019. This slight fall from the previous year was attributable to the significant impact of the
adjustments to loans (4.2 billion euro compared to 2.1 billion euro in 2019, as detailed further below) — only partly offset by the
consideration from the sale to Nexi of the business line consisting of the acquiring activities within the payment systems area,
completed at the end of the first half — and the decrease in net fee and commission income and the profits (losses) on
financial assets and liabilities in the aftermath of the COVID-19 epidemic.

Operating income Looking in detail at the cost and revenue components, net — for

(millions of euro) like-for-like comparison — of the contributions from the UBI Group
included in the consolidated income statement from the acquisition
date (therefore from August), the operating income was down

e e slightly on 2019. The above-mentioned fall in net fee and
Y 2 ] 6+ | FY 18,167 commission income, the decline in profits (losses) on financial
assets and liabilities designated at fair value and the net operating
4Q [T 1.039 4Q HEH costs were only partially offset by the positive performance of the
income from insurance business and the modest growth in net

3Q 575 3Q 4513 interest income.
2Q 2 WEH More specifically, net interest income, amounting to 7,070 million
euro (net of 713 million euro for UBI), increased overall (+0.9%),
1Q 1Q 4401 due to the higher contribution from customer dealing and, within
UBI Group [ other net interest income, the higher contribution from the TLTRO

programmes. These changes fully offset lower contributions from
financial assets and liabilities, accounts with banks and non-performing assets, with the latter due to the progressive reduction
in NPLs, also as a result of the derisking activities.

The fall in net fee and commission income (-4.8% to 7,582 million euro, net of 721 million euro for the UBI Group), which
represented almost 44% of the operating income, was attributable to the effects of the contraction in operations due to the
situation generated by the COVID-19 epidemic. The performance of this caption reflected the fall in all the areas of
operations: commercial banking (-6.3%), management, dealing and financial consultancy (-2.4%) and other net fee and
commission income (-14.2%). However, fee and commission income picked up in the third and fourth quarter of the year, as
noted further below.

Income from insurance business — which includes the cost and revenue captions of the insurance business of the Group’s life
and non-life companies, and also includes the results of Intesa Sanpaolo RBM Salute — recorded an increase compared to
the like-for-like figure for 2019 (+5.9% to 1,343 million euro, net of 10 million euro for UBI), due to the increase in the technical
margin, due to the strong performance of the non-life business. This caption benefited from the performance of the recently
acquired company in the healthcare segment.

In contrast, profits (losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value, which include profits (losses) on trading
and the fair value adjustments in hedge accounting were down significantly (around -25% to 1,441 million euro, net of
131 million euro for the UBI Group), due to the lower contribution from transactions in instruments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and financial liabilities as a result of lower capital gains realised, which fully offset the
increase in profits (losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value.

Other operating income (expenses) — a caption which comprises
profits on investments carried at equity and other income and
expenses from continuing operations — recorded a negative
balance, net of the UBI Group (net expenses of 27 million euro

Operating margin
(millions of euro)

2020 2019 . L ; -
compared to net income of 4 million euro in 2019), almost entirely
v I | 72 FY 8,760 due to the lower contribution from the investments carried at
equity. At consolidated level, the net balance of this caption
40 [ 514 4Q 5653 including the contribution from UBI was a positive amount of 12
: million euro.
3a 215 3Q 2198 As a result of the above changes, operating income for 2020
20 2q 57 amounted to 17,409 million euro (net of a contribution of
1,614 million euro relating to UBI), slightly down — as already
10 B 1Q Siee mentioned — on 2019 (-4.2%).
UBI Group [ ] Operating costs continued to fall (-3.4% to 9,086 million euro, net

of 885 million euro relating to UBI) both for personnel expenses
(-3.8%), as a result of the downsizing of the workforce and the reduction in the variable component — which more than offset
the effect of the salary increases linked to the renewal of the National Collective Bargaining Agreement — and for
administrative expenses (-5.4%). The latter recorded decreases in all the main items of expenditure, also due to the additional
control measures adopted. The trend in operating costs also reflected the lower direct and indirect personnel costs, influenced
by the widespread use of remote work in the situation generated by the public health emergency. In contrast, amortisation and
depreciation, which in accordance with IFRS 16 also include the amount relating to rights of use acquired under operating
leases, increased (+3.5%) as a result of the greater IT investments.

The cost/income ratio for the period, in which the lower costs were offset by the reduction in revenues, stood at 52.2% (51.8%
in 2019). With the UBI Group included, the ratio was 52.4%.

As a result of these revenue and cost trends, the operating margin amounted to 8,323 million euro (net of the contribution of
729 million euro from UBI), down by 5% on the like-for-like figure for the previous year.
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As already mentioned, net adjustments to loans (at 4,160 million euro, net of 54 million euro relating to UBI) doubled in
amount with respect to 2019. This was due to the revision of the scenario, in the situation generated by the COVID-19
epidemic, with the application of the methods developed by the Group and taking into account the projections made by the
ECB and the Bank of Italy, with the recognition of around 2,164 million euro of adjustments, of which 986 million euro on
performing loans and 1,178 million euro on non-performing loans. The annualised cost of risk, expressed as the ratio of net
adjustments to net loans, rose to 104 basis points (compared to 53 basis points at the end of 2019) as a result of these
extraordinary effects. Excluding the COVID-19-related component, the annualised cost of risk fell to 50 basis points.

Other net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets were up (338 million euro, net of 8 million euro relating to
UBI), compared to 254 million euro for 2019, due to the higher net provisions for legal disputes.

Other income (expenses), which include realised profits (losses) on investments and income and expenses not strictly linked
to operations, had a net positive balance higher than the figure for 2019 (64 million euro, or +16.4%).

Income from discontinued operations, amounting to 1,163 million euro (88 million euro in 2019), included the contribution of
the business line consisting of the acquiring activities within the payment systems area transferred to Nexi and, in particular,
the capital gain recognised at the end of the first half on completion of the sale (1,110 million euro, of which 315 million euro
consisting of the day-one profit on the purchase of the Nexi shares) and the income for the year from the business line sold
(53 million euro).

As a result of the trends illustrated above, gross income amounted to 5,052 million euro (-23%), net of 667 million euro
relating to UBI.

Net income (loss) Taxes on income amounted to 1,190 million euro (net of 170

(millions of euro) million euro relating to UBI), with a tax rate of 23.6%, which was
particularly low due to the presence of the above-mentioned
capital gain on the sale of the acquiring business line subject to a

2020 2019 - ; - ) ;
specific tax regime. With the income components relating to UBI

FY 2,171 FY 4,182 included, the tax rate was 23.8%.
Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives amounted to
- 0 4q B2 174 million euro, net of 1,387 million euro relating to UBI. More
N specifically, the latter consisted almost entirely (1,378 million euro)
3Q B 3303 | sQ s of expenses relating to the integration of the UBI Group into the
2Q 1‘415 2q W6 Intesa Sanpaolo Group, as previously mentioned and as detailed
\ below, relating for the most part to the agreement reached with the
1 m 1Q [§050 trade unions for the voluntary exits, and for the remainder to IT

UBI Group [] and advisory expenses connected with the integration process.

The effects of purchase price allocation (net of tax) amounted to -
102 million euro, accompanied by 2,062 million euro relating, as already mentioned, to negative goodwill arising from the
business combination of UBI Banca and its subsidiaries (net of the transaction costs for the Public Purchase and Exchange
Offer for the component not attributable to shareholders’ equity and other expenses strictly connected to the transaction).

The charges aimed at maintaining the stability of the banking industry were still significant and were up compared to 2019,
totalling 465 million euro after tax (360 million euro in 2019), corresponding to 670 million euro before tax, essentially
consisting of ordinary and additional contributions to the resolution fund, the contributions to the deposit guarantee schemes
and the levies relating to international subsidiary banks. These amounts do not include the charges relating to UBI, which
amounted to 47 million euro after tax.

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets (net of tax) also included the goodwill impairment allocated to the Banca
dei Territori Division (912 million euro, net of tax), which was fully written off as a result of the increase in the carrying amount
of the Cash Generating Unit following the capital increase for the Public Purchase and Exchange Offer for UBI Banca and the
deterioration of the macro economic environment compared to the scenario considered for the impairment testing as at
30 June 2020.

Lastly, minority interests were allocated their share of the net income, amounting to 38 million euro (net of 19 million euro
relating to UBI).

As already noted above, the consolidated income statement for 2020 posted net income of 3,277 million euro. Without taking
into account the income statement effects of the acquisition and integration of UBI Banca and its subsidiaries and the goodwiill
impairment, consolidated net income would have been 3,083 million euro compared to 4,182 million euro for 2019.

The consolidated income statement for the fourth quarter of 2020 showed a net loss of 3,099 million euro compared to net
income of 3,810 million euro for the previous three months. The result for the last three months of the year reflected the final
recognition of the purchase price for the UBI Group and the related integration charges, not yet included in the accounts as at
30 September, which had also included the provisional measurement of the negative goodwill. It also reflected the above-
mentioned goodwill impairment of the Banca dei Territori.

Without considering the profit and loss effects of the consolidation and integration of UBI Banca and its subsidiaries —
including the final measurement of the negative goodwill and the amount of the integration charges — and the goodwill
impairment allocated to the Banca dei Territori Division, which, as already noted, has been fully written down, the quarterly
income statement would have ended at essentially breakeven, penalised by the substantial adjustments to loans.

More specifically, the growth in revenues, driven by the significant contribution from fee and commission income — in previous
months strongly impacted by the negative effects of the performance of the markets and restrictive measures linked to the
pandemic — was offset by higher operating costs and above all by the significant adjustments to loans in the aftermath of the
COVID-19 epidemic.

Looking in greater detail at the cost and revenue components, the operating income for the fourth quarter was up on the third
quarter (+4.1% to 4,251 million euro, net of 1,039 million euro relating to UBI).

Specifically, net interest income fell slightly (-3.5%), while net fee and commission income, which in previous quarters had
been particularly affected by the difficult environment, increased overall (+14.6%), as a result of the positive performance of
all the segments: commercial banking (+6%), management, dealing and consultancy (+16.5%) and other net fee and
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commission income (around +30%). Income from insurance business also increased (+5.8%), mainly as a result of the
technical margin, while the profits (losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value was down (around -48%)
due the lower activity on the securities portfolio and the significant downsizing in the Debt Value Adjustment (DVA) related to
liabilities in the form of certificates.

Operating costs were down on the previous quarter (+13.3% to 2,487 million euro, net of 525 million euro relating to UBI
Banca), attributable both to personnel expenses (+5.8%, particularly for the variable component of remuneration) and
administrative expenses (+32.3%, due to the seasonal factors that characterise the final months of the year).

In relation to the revenue and cost trends, the operating margin for the fourth quarter was down on the third quarter
(around -6.5% to 1,764 million euro, net of 514 million euro relating to UBI Banca).

As already mentioned, the net adjustments to loans (around +77% to 1,506 million euro, net of 31 million euro relating to UBI),
in the environment resulting from the health crisis, had a significant impact.

Other net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets were up (121 million euro, net of 1 million euro relating to UBI,
compared to 60 million euro for the previous quarter), due to the higher adjustments to other assets.

As a result of the above changes, gross income for the fourth quarter fell significantly compared to the previous quarter
(around -80% to 196 million euro, net of 544 million euro relating to UBI).

Taxes on income amounted to 27 million euro (net of 139 million euro relating to UBI).

Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives amounted to 97 million euro, in addition to 1,387 million euro relating to
UBI. More specifically, the latter consisted almost entirely (1,378 million euro) of expenses relating to the integration of the
UBI Group into the Intesa Sanpaolo Group, as previously mentioned and as detailed below, relating for the most part to the
agreement reached with the trade unions for the voluntary exits, and for the remainder to IT and advisory expenses
connected with the integration process.

The effects of purchase price allocation (net of tax) were negative by 25 million euro, accompanied by a negative effect of
1,202 million euro for the UBI Group in relation to the final determination of the purchase price of UBI Banca and its
subsidiaries.

The charges aimed at maintaining the stability of the banking industry recognised in the quarter amounted to 40 million euro
net of tax (corresponding to 58 million euro before tax), in addition to a positive effect of 2 million euro relating to UBI.
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets included the already mentioned goodwill impairment loss allocated to the
Banca dei Territori Division (912 million euro, net of tax), which was fully written off as a result of the increase in the carrying
amount of the Cash Generating Unit following the capital increase for the Public Purchase and Exchange Offer for UBI Banca
and the deterioration of the macro economic situation compared to the scenario considered for the impairment testing carried
out as at 30 June 2020.

Lastly, minority interests were allocated their share of the net income (totalling 12 million euro, representing the sum of 3
million euro of losses net of UBI and 15 million euro of net income relating to UBI).

As already mentioned, the consolidated income statement for the fourth quarter of 2020 posted a net loss of 3,099 million
euro. As already noted, without taking into account the income statement effects of the acquisition and integration of UBI
Banca and its subsidiaries and the goodwill impairment, the consolidated net income would have been substantially
breakeven.

With regard to the balance sheet figures, as described in the related chapter, which you are referred to for more details, as at
31 December 2020, the movement in loans and deposits was affected by the classification under assets held for sale, in
accordance with IFRS 5, of the loans to be sold in 2021, as part of the de-risking strategies of the Group NPL Plan, and of the
assets and liabilities pertaining to the going concern of the branches to be sold as part of the acquisition of the UBI Group.

[loans (o clstomears As at 31 December 2020, loans to customers totalled around
(millions of euro) 402 billion euro (net of 60 billion euro relating to the UBI Group),
up on the end of 2019 (+6.6 billion euro, or +1.7%), due to the
varying trends in the components that make up the aggregate on a
like-for-like basis. Specifically, commercial banking loans were up
overall (+6.6%), due to the positive performance of mortgages and
311220 [N | 50748 |31.12.19 (111895229 other medium-/long-term loans to corporate and individual
customers (+32 billion euro, or around +18%), which reflect the
Group’s support for the Italian economy, including in relation to the
30.6.20 [luckacy 30.6.19 [1111994,253 extraordinary measures taken by the government. The changes in
this component, together with the contribution — although much
smaller — from the loans represented by securities (+0.5 billion
euro, or +8%), offset the much smaller decrease in advances and
UBI Group [] other loans (-6.8 billion euro, or -4.6%) and current accounts (-2.4
billion euro, or -11.7%).
Non-performing loans fell significantly (-3.9 billion euro, or -27.3%), due to the above-mentioned de-risking operations.
Specifically, in 2020 non-performing loans continued to fall as a percentage of total loans due to lower reclassifications to the
NPL category and the securitisations in December of portfolios of bad loans (around 4.3 billion euro gross of adjustments and
around 1.2 billion euro net of adjustments, plus around 0.8 billion euro gross of adjustments and around 0.4 billion euro net of
adjustments relating to UBI Banca) as well as the recognition among non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations of portfolios of the Parent Company classified as available for sale at the end of 2020 of around 3.2 billion euro
gross of adjustments and around 0.5 billion euro net of adjustments (around 5.4 billion euro gross of adjustments and around
2.1 billion euro net of adjustments including the contribution from UBI and the ongoing concerns to be sold).
Lastly, the financial component of the repurchase agreements was down sharply (-12.8 billion euro, or around -43%).

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

30.9.20 403,901 . 85247 | 30.9.19 395,193

31.3.20 404,900 31.3.19 395,595
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On the funding side, direct deposits from banking business
amounted to 457 billion euro at the end of December 2020 (net of
68 billion euro relating to the UBI Group), up on the figure at the
end of 2019 (+31.5 billion euro, or +7.4%), driven by current
accounts and deposits (+45.2 billion euro, or around +14%). There
were also increases in other forms of funding, including certificates
31.12.20 [ | es0%0 |31.12.19 425,612 of deposit and commercial paper (+3.4 billion euro, or around
+14%) and subordinated liabilities (+0.3 billion euro, or around
+4%). In contrast, bonds were down (-13.2 billion euro, or around -
KUGPLY 437,806 30.6.19 [[1423,158 20%) and, although only slightly, also certificates of deposit (-0.6
billion euro, or -13.6%). With regard to the financial component,

Direct deposits from banking business
(millions of euro)

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

30.9.20 RN ]os321 | 30.9.19 | 426662

31.3.20 [ EREE 31.3.19 [427,206 . o
there was a decrease in repurchase agreements and securities
lending (-3.6 billion euro, or around -80%), largely due to

UBI Group [ ] transactions with institutional counterparties.

Direct deposits from insurance business and technical reserves Direct_ deposits from insuran‘?e business — which also include the

(millions of euro) technical reserves that constitute the amounts owed to customers
taking out traditional policies or policies with significant insurance
risk — were up at around 173 billion euro (net of 2.7 billion euro
relating to the UBI Group) at the end of December compared to
the end of 2019 (+6.7 billion euro, or +4%). This performance was
31.12.20 |IEKEZ 2 673 31.12.19 [11165,945 driven by growth in the different components of the aggregate: to a
greater extent for technical reserves (around +5 million euro, or

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

30.9.20 [REASIIN 2.591 30.9.19 | 164,516 . -
+5.8%) and, a lesser extent, for other deposits (+0.5 billion euro,
30.6.20 [ERTREENK 30.6.19 [11157,626 or around +62%) and financial liabilities measured at fair value
31320 BEEGE 31.3.19 HEIEE (around +1 billion euro, +1.3%), consisting entirely of unit-linked
products.
UBIGroup []

The Group’s indirect customer deposits, at the end of 2020, amounted to 552 billion euro, net of the 89 billion euro attributable
to the UBI Group. The increase of 3.3% since the beginning of the year is due to the balanced development of both
components.

Specifically, assets under management — which account for two-thirds of the total aggregate — increased by 11.4 billion euro
(+3.2%), mainly driven by portfolio management schemes (+4.4 billion euro), technical reserves and insurance financial
liabilities (+3.7 billion euro) and mutual funds (+2.4 billion euro). Relations with institutional customers and pension funds also
grew. Like assets under management, also assets under administration increased (+3.4%, or +6 billion euro), concentrated in
securities and third-party products in custody.

Results of the Business Units

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group organisational structure is based on six business segments: Banca dei Territori, IMI Corporate &
Investment Banking, International Subsidiary Banks, Asset Management, Private Banking and Insurance. In addition, there is
the Corporate Centre, which is charged with providing guidance, coordination and control for the entire Group and - albeit
temporarily - the contribution of the UBI Group.

The share of operating income attributable to each business segment confirmed that commercial banking activities in Italy
continue to account for the majority (44% of the operating income of the business areas), although significant contributions
were also provided by corporate and investment banking (around 24%), commercial banking activity abroad (around 10%),
private banking (around 11%), insurance business (around 7%) and asset management (around 5%).

Where necessary, the division figures for the comparative periods have been restated to reflect the changes in scope of the
business units to enable a like-for-like comparison, except for the figures relating to the UBI Group, which as indicated have
not been restated.



Report on operations — Overview of 2020

Operating income:
Breakdown by business area'"

_ International Subsidiary Banks 10.4%

~\ Private Banking 10.6%
‘ Asset Management 4.7%

Insurance 6.8%

IMI Corporate &
Investment Banking 23.5%

Of which Capital Market
and Investment Banking 12.1%

Banca dei Territori 44.0%

(1 Excluding Corporate Centre and UBI Group

In 2020, Banca dei Territori — which oversees the traditional

lending and deposit collecting activities in Italy and related

financial services — reported operating income of 8,083 million

euro, representing around half the consolidated operating

Operating income revenues for the Group (net of the UBI Group), down (-3.7%) on
_ 8,083 the same period of the previous year, both due to the fall in net fee

8,392 and commission income (-6.4%), which was affected by the sharp

slowdown in the first half of the year following the lockdown related

Operati [ . : .
prmie g to the containment of the COVID-19 pandemic — attributable to

33‘2:;3 both the management, dealing and financial consultancy activities

and the commercial banking activities — and, to a lesser extent, in

Net income (loss) net interest income (-1.1%). Among the other revenue
677 ﬂ components, which however provide a marginal contribution to the
1,000 Division’s income, profits (losses) on financial assets and liabilities

designated at fair value grew significantly (+16.3%).
I 2020 2019 Operating costs fell (-4.3% to 5,065 million euro), both for
personnel expenses (-5.6%), due to the reduction in the average
workforce, and for administrative expenses (-2.1%), despite higher costs connected to the health emergency. As a result of
the changes described above, the operating margin amounted to 3,018 million euro (-2.7%). Gross income, equal to 385
million euro, was heavily affected by the significant increase in adjustments to loans mainly correlated with the revision of the
scenario following the pandemic. Net income, after allocation to the Division of taxes and charges for integration, and
following the adjustment fully writing off the goodwill associated with the increase in the carrying amount of the Division
following the integration of UBI Banca (goodwill impairment of -912 million euro) amounted to -677 million euro.
The balance sheet figures at the end of December 2020 showed significant growth in total intermediated volumes of loans
and deposits from the beginning of the year (+11.1%). In detail, loans to customers increased (+6.8% to 207,533 million euro),
due to medium-/long-term loans to SMEs and retail companies, which reflect the Group’s support to the Italian economy, also
in relation to the extraordinary measures taken by the government. Direct deposits from banking business were up sharply
(+15.3% to 229,677 million euro) in the amounts due to customers component, due to the higher liquidity accumulated on
deposits held by businesses and individuals awaiting a more favourable scenario.

The IMI Corporate & Investment Banking Division (renamed
following the merger of Banca IMI into the Parent Company) —
which oversees corporate banking, investment banking and public
finance in Italy and abroad — recorded operating income of 4,325

Operating income million euro in 2020 (around 25% of the consolidated figure for the
_4.325 Group, net of the UBI Group), an increase on 2019 (+5.4%). In

4,105 detail, net interest income increased significantly (+13.8% to 2,131

Operating margin million euro), due to the higher con_trib_utio_n from loans to
3297 customers. In contrast, net fee and commission income fell (-2% to

2,057 979 million euro), due to the performance of the commercial

banking segment. Profits on financial assets and liabilities

Net income (loss) designated at fair value were down slightly (-2% to 1,207 million
F 1,875 euro), mainly owing to the significant reduction of the valuation

1,830 effects due to the debt value adjustment (DVA) correlated with

liabilities in the form of certificates. Operating costs were down

I 2020 2019 (-4.4% to 1,098 million euro), both for personnel expenses (-2.1%

to 423 million euro) and administrative expenses (-5.6% to 654
million euro), as well as depreciation and amortisation (-8.7% to 21 million euro).
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As a result of the above revenue and cost trends, the operating margin came to 3,227 million euro (+9.1%). Gross income,
amounting to 2,782 million euro, was up (+3.1%), despite higher net adjustments to loans in the environment generated by
the COVID-19 epidemic. Net income for the period came to 1,875 million euro (+2.5%).

The Division’s intermediated volumes increased overall compared to the beginning of the year (+2%). In detail, loans to
customers increased (+2.4% to 135,004 million euro), attributable to medium-/long-term loans for structured finance
transactions, as did direct deposits (+1.5% to 88,183 million euro) mainly due to the growth in amounts due to global
corporate customers.

: . In 2020, the operating income of the Division — which is
'“‘e"“a"°".‘i'l,' Subfsndlary Banks responsible for the Group’s operations on international markets
e o er) through commercial banking subsidiaries and associates — came

Operating income

1,908
1,998

Operating margin
927

1,007
Net income (loss)

473
723

I 2020 2019

to 1,908 million euro, down (-4.5%) on the same period of the
previous year (-4% at constant exchange rates) due to the
performance of net interest income (-4.4% to 1,310 million euro)
and net fee and commission income (-6% to 505 million euro), only
minimally offset by the greater contribution from the profits (losses)
on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value (+5.6% to
131 million euro). Operating costs decreased slightly (-1% to 981
million euro, -0.2% at constant exchange rates) due to the slight
fall in personnel expenses (-2.4% to 527 million euro) and
administrative expenses (-0.6% to 344 million euro), while
depreciation and amortisation increased (+4.8% to 110 million
euro). As a result of the above revenue and cost trends, the
operating margin decreased (-7.9%) to 927 million euro. Gross
income decreased by 28.8% to 672 million euro, also due to higher

adjustments to loans, primarily attributable to the pandemic. The Division closed 2020 with net income of 473 million euro (-
34.6%).

The Division’s intermediated volumes grew at the end of 2020 by 6.4% from the beginning of the year, owing to both loans to
customers (+6%), in the medium-/long-term component, and to direct deposits from banking business (+6.7%), in particular

amounts due to customers.

Private Banking
(millions of euro)

Operating income

1,944
1,971

Operating margin

1,340
1,357

Net income (loss)
873
918

I 2020 2019

The Private Banking Division — which serves the top customer
segment (Private and High Net Worth Individuals) creating value
by offering top products and services — generated gross income of
1,282 million euro in 2020, down (-3.9%) on 2019, due to lower
operating income (-27 million euro) only partially offset by lower
operating costs (-10 million euro) and higher net adjustments to
loans (+10 million euro).

Specifically, the revenue performance was mainly attributable to
the reduction in both net fee and commission income (-33 million
euro) and net income (loss) of financial assets (-13 million euro),
with net interest income up (+19 million euro), due to higher
average volumes. The Division closed the half year with net
income of 873 million euro, down (-4.9%) on 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, assets gathered, which also include the
contribution of the trust mandates for SIREF Fiduciaria, amounted
to 213.9 billion euro (+10.4 billion euro compared to the beginning
of the year). This performance was due to the positive contribution

of net inflows, along with the revaluation of assets in the second half of the year. The assets under management component

amounted to 130.9 billion euro (+8.3 billion euro).

Asset Management
(millions of euro)

Operating income

867
840

Operating margin
71
683
Net income (loss)

519
518

I 2020 2019

The Asset Management Division — whose mission is to develop
asset management solutions targeted at the Group’s customers
and is present on the open market segment through the subsidiary
Eurizon Capital and its investees — posted operating income of
867 million euro in 2020, an increase (+3.2%) on 2019 mainly due
to the contribution of net fee and commission income (+4.5%).
Operating costs were essentially stable (at 156 million euro). As a
result of the above revenue and cost trends, the operating margin
came to 711 million euro (+4.1%). The Division closed 2020 with
net income of 519 million euro (substantially in line with 2019).
Overall, assets managed by the Asset Management Division
amounted to 273.3 billion euro as at 31 December 2020, up by
7.5 billion euro (+2.8%) year-on-year, as a result of the revaluation
of assets and net inflows (+1.5 billion euro).
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Insurance
(millions of euro)

I 2020

Operating income

Operating margin

Net income (loss)

2019

I 2020

UBI Group
(millions of euro)

Operating income

I

Operating margin

729

1

Net income (loss)

1,106

|

1,614

In 2020, the Insurance Division — which oversees management of
the subsidiaries of the insurance group Intesa Sanpaolo Vita, and
Fideuram Vita, with the mission of developing the insurance and
pension product mix targeting Group customers — achieved
income from insurance business of 1,268 million euro, up (+3.3%)
on 2019. The improved result — achieved despite the lower
financial profitability of investments in the life insurance portfolio
compared to the previous year — was mainly attributable to the
increase in revenues linked to the non-life business, characterised
by a significant decline in claims recorded during the period of
lockdown as a result of the COVID-19 emergency.

Gross income was essentially stable (+0.9% to 999 million euro).
Net income came to 686 million euro (+3.8%).

As a result of the completion of the acquisition of UBI Banca
during the year, within the segment reporting, the results for the
UBI Group — reported from the acquisition date (therefore from
August) — have been temporarily represented as a separate
business unit and will be assigned to divisions at a later date, as
the integration proceeds. As stated above in the comments on the
consolidated results, given the particular case in question, no
adjustments have been made to the historic reclassified data in
order to retroactively reflect the effects of the acquisition. As a
result, no comparative figures have been provided.

Operating income of 1,614 million euro is 44% composed of net
interest income, 45% of fee and commission income and 8% of
profits (losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value.
Specifically, net fee and commission income showed a positive
trend, which continued in the third quarter, driven both by the
contribution from management, dealing and financial consultancy
services and the recovery of traditional banking activity, which

generated greater fee and commission income than in previous periods, which had been negatively impacted by the
shutdowns and slowdowns caused by the lockdown. Operating costs amounted to 885 million euro. In view of the revenue
and cost components described above, the operating margin came to 729 million euro.

As a result of the measurement of the negative goodwill, recognised following the acquisition through the calculation at the
acquisition date of the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed from the UBI Group, and the costs
related to the integration and improvement of operational efficiency and reduction of the risk profile, the net income of the
business unit amounted to 1,106 million euro.
With regard to the balance sheet figures, at the end of December direct deposits from banking business amounted to around
68 billion euro, net of around 30 billion euro reclassified to liabilities held for sale relating to the going concern to be sold to
BPER as part of the ISP-UBI integration, whereas loans amounted to 59.7 billion euro net of around 24 billion euro, which
were also reclassified to assets held for sale.
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Highlights

The highlights for the year 2020 are described below.

Integration of the UBI Group

Completion of the transaction

The acceptance period for the Public Purchase and Exchange Offer (below “Offer” or “Public Offer”) launched by Intesa
Sanpaolo for a maximum of 1,144,285,146 ordinary shares of Unione di Banche ltaliane S.p.A. (below “UBI Banca”),
representing all subscribed and paid-in share capital, ended on 30 July 2020. The Private Placement of UBI Banca shares
reserved for “qualified institutional buyers” launched by Intesa Sanpaolo in the United States also ended on that date.

Detailed information about the Offer is provided in the Offer Document, the Information Document and all the documentation
made available in accordance with the law, as well as the individual announcements made regarding the progress of the Offer
and its outcome. However, we remind you here that the Offer was made by Intesa Sanpaolo on 17 February 2020, initially in
the form of a Public Purchase Offer, based on a unit consideration of 1.7000 newly issued Intesa Sanpaolo ordinary shares
for each share of UBI Banca tendered in acceptance. The Intesa Sanpaolo shares offered as consideration would be issued
by virtue of a capital increase with the exclusion of the pre-emption right pursuant to Article 2441, paragraph 4, of the Italian
Civil Code, reserved to the persons tendering UBI Banca'’s shares to the offer. In this regard, the Shareholders’ Meeting held
on 27 April 2020 — with 8,935,308,480 votes in favour equivalent to 98.04467% of the ordinary shares represented — granted
the Board of Directors powers to approve a share capital increase, by 31 December 2020, up to a maximum total amount
of 1,011,548,072.60 euro, in addition to any share premium, with the issuance of a maximum number of 1,945,284,755
ordinary shares. The Shareholders’ Meeting also decided to consequently amend Article 5 of the Articles of Association and
grant the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, on a several basis and through
possible appointment of special attorneys, powers to do whatever required, necessary or useful to execute the resolutions
above. The Offer was subsequently amended on 17 July 2020 following the increase in the consideration per share, through
the establishment of a cash consideration of 0.57 euro for each UBI Banca share tendered in acceptance. At the same time,
the acceptance period was extended ex officio by CONSOB from the initial deadline of 28 July 2020 to 30 July 2020, pursuant
to Article 40, paragraph 4, of the Issuers’ Regulation, through Resolution No. 21460 of 27 July 2020.

Furthermore, to prevent possible antitrust concerns, on 17 February 2020 Intesa Sanpaolo and BPER Banca (below also
“BPER”) entered into a binding agreement, conditional on the success of the Public Offer (‘BPER Agreement”), which
provides for the purchase by BPER of a going concern consisting of a pool of branches of the entity resulting from the
combination of Intesa Sanpaolo with UBI Banca. The original agreement provided for the sale of around 400/500 branches of
the combined entity and the related assets and liabilities for a consideration equal to a multiple of 0.55 times the CET 1 of UBI
Banca allocated to the branches identified as being subject of the sale. Subsequently, to take appropriate account of the
economic situation generated by the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, and following discussions held between Intesa
Sanpaolo and BPER, the pricing mechanism described above was modified by establishing a consideration for the above-
mentioned going concern equal to 0.38 times the value of the fully-loaded CET 1 at the reference date allocated to the risk-
weighted assets of the branches to be sold. In order to remove the specific antitrust concerns raised by the Italian Antitrust
Authority (“AGCM”), on 15 June 2020 Intesa Sanpaolo negotiated and signed an agreement supplementing the BPER
Agreement under which the number of branches to be transferred was increased (from 400/500 to 532, of which 501 of UBI
Banca and 31 of Intesa Sanpaolo) with the precise identification of the details and consequent redefinition of the estimated
values. By decision adopted at the meeting of 14 July 2020 and notified to Intesa Sanpaolo on 16 July 2020, AGCM approved
the transaction for the acquisition of control of UBI Banca subject to the execution of structural sales in accordance with the
BPER Agreement and the commitments made by Intesa Sanpaolo.

Again with regard to the BPER Agreement, on 12 November 2020 a supplementary agreement to the binding agreement was
signed, which completed the identification of the branches and of the people to be included in the going concern. The final
scope of the going concern comprises 486 branches with accounting autonomy where customer accounts are legally
registered (7 more than previously agreed) and 134 operational outlets (such as sub-branches) that provide services to
branch customers and do not have accounting autonomy. A total of 5,107 people will be included in the going concern and
will mainly be deployed in the network of branches and operational outlets and in the Private and Corporate business areas,
in addition to those working in the “semi-central” governance areas in support of the regional and local units that coordinate
the network of branches included in the going concern and “central” governance areas for the strengthening of central, control
and IT functions.

The sale to BPER Banca of the former UBI Banca going concern — including a going concern owned by UBISS (a consortium
company controlled by UBI Banca) essentially focused on services to the branches being acquired — took effect on 22
February 2021, while the sale of the branches owned by Intesa Sanpaolo will take effect from 21 June 2021.

In addition, with regard to the sales to be made to fulfil the commitments made to AGCMS®, on 15 January 2021 Intesa
Sanpaolo signed an agreement with Banca Popolare della Puglia e della Basilicata (below also “BPPB”) for the sale to the
latter of a going concern consisting of 17 branches with accounting autonomy and 9 operational outlets of UBI Banca, with a
total of 148 employees, in Abruzzo, Molise, Basilicata and Calabria. The transaction is subject to legal authorisations, with
completion expected by the end of the first half of 2021.

Based on the final results — announced to the market on 3 August 2020 — a total of 1,031,958,027 UBI Banca shares were
tendered in acceptance of the Offer during the acceptance period (including those tendered in acceptance through the Private
Placement), equal to approximately 90.184% of the share capital of UBI Banca. As a result of the settlement of the Offer (and
the Private Placement) and on the basis of the results of the Offer (and of the Private Placement), the Offeror Intesa Sanpaolo
came to hold a total of 1,041,458,904 UBI Banca shares, representing approximately 91.0139% of the share capital of UBI

9 As stated in the Registration Document published on 26 June 2020, in the event that, even if the sale of the going concern to BPER Banca was
successful, the AGCM still found any critical antitrust issues in certain local areas (where there are no branches to be sold to BPER), Intesa Sanpaolo
made a commitment to enter into agreements with one or more independent third parties, within nine months of the payment date for the Offer, for the
sale of additional 17 bank branches of UBI Banca in total, and the AGCM made its authorisation conditional upon that commitment.
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Banca, given that (i) the Offeror held, directly and indirectly (including through fiduciary companies or nominees) a total of
249,077 ordinary shares of the Issuer, equal to 0.0218% and (ii) UBI Banca held 9,251,800 own shares equal to 0.8085% of
the share capital of the Issuer.

Lastly, acceptances “with reserves” were also received in respect of a total number of 334,454 UBI Banca shares from

103 acceptors. These acceptances have not been counted for determining the percent acceptance of the Offer. Based on the

final results indicated above, the Percentage Threshold Condition (i.e. the condition that the Offeror comes to hold an overall

interest at least equal to 66.67% of the Issuer’s share capital) was fulfilled and all the other conditions precedent of the Offer
were fulfilled or, as the case may be, waived by Intesa Sanpaolo. As a result, the Offer was effective and was able to be
completed.

On 5 August 2020, in exchange for the transfer of the ownership of the UBI Banca shares, Intesa Sanpaolo issued and

assigned the acceptors of the Offer a total of 1,754,328,645 new Intesa Sanpaolo shares, representing 9.107% of the share

capital of Intesa Sanpaolo, based on the ratio of 1.7000 Intesa Sanpaolo shares to 1 UBI Banca share. In addition, on 19

August 2020, Intesa Sanpaolo paid the entitled parties the cash consideration (i.e. 0.57 euro for each UBI Banca share

tendered in acceptance) which amounted to a total of 588,216,075.39 euro.

The interest held directly or indirectly by Intesa Sanpaolo in the share capital of UBI Banca at the end of the acceptance

period was more than 90%, but less than 95%, which meant that the conditions were met for the compulsory squeeze-out

pursuant to Article 108, paragraph 2, of the Consolidated Law on Finance, with Intesa Sanpaolo having already declared in
the Offer Document that it would not implement measures to restore the minimum free float conditions for normal trading of
the UBI Banca ordinary shares. Therefore, pursuant to Article 108, paragraph 2, of the Consolidated Law on Finance, Intesa

Sanpaolo was required to purchase the remaining ordinary shares from the shareholders of UBI Banca who requested it, for a

total amount of 112,327,119 UBI shares and representing 9.8163% of the share capital. The consideration per remaining

share, identified in accordance with the provisions of Article 108, paragraphs 3 and 5, of the Consolidated Law on Finance,
was determined as follows:

i. aconsideration equal to that offered to the acceptors of the Public Purchase and Exchange Offer, namely 1.7000 newly
issued Intesa Sanpaolo ordinary shares and 0.57 euro for each UBI Banca share tendered in acceptance; or,
alternatively,

ii. only to the shareholders so requesting, a cash consideration in full whose amount for each UBI Banca share, calculated
in accordance with Article 50-ter, paragraph 1, letter a) of the Issuers’ Regulations, was equal to the sum of (x) the
weighted average of the official prices of the Intesa Sanpaolo shares recorded on the Italian Stock Exchange during the
five trading days prior to the payment date (i.e. on 29, 30 and 31 July, and 3 and 4 August 2020) multiplied by the
exchange ratio (2.969 euro) and (y) 0.57 euro, for a total consideration of 3.539 euro per remaining share.

The compulsory squeeze-out procedure, pursuant to Article 108, paragraph 2, of the Consolidated Law on Finance, which

was carried out between 24 August and 11 September 2020, resulted in sale requests for a total of 90,691,202 remaining

shares, representing 7.9256% of the share capital of UBI Banca and 80.7385% of the remaining shares. With reference to the

90,691,202 remaining shares:

i. for 87,853,597 remaining shares, the owners have requested the consideration established for the Public Offer; and

ii. for the other 2,837,605 remaining shares, the owners have requested the cash consideration in full, i.e. 3.539 per
remaining share.

Taking into account (a) the 1,031,958,027 shares tendered in acceptance of the Offer, (b) the 90,691,202 remaining shares

purchased through the procedure pursuant to Article 108, paragraph 2, of the Consolidated Law on Finance, (c) the

131,645 ordinary shares of the Issuer held directly or indirectly by Intesa Sanpaolo and (d) the 8,903,302 own shares held by

UBI Banca, Intesa Sanpaolo, following the procedure pursuant to Article 108, paragraph 2, of the Consolidated Law on

Finance, came to hold a total of 1,131,684,176 UBI Banca shares, equal to 98.8988% of the share capital of UBI Banca.

Intesa Sanpaolo made the payment of the consideration for the compulsory squeeze-out pursuant to Article 108 paragraph 2

of the Consolidated Law on Finance on 17 September 2020 through:

i. the issuance of 149,351,114 new Intesa Sanpaolo shares, representing 0.77% of the bank’s share capital, and the
payment of a consideration of 50,076,550.29 euro to the accepting shareholders who chose the consideration
established for the Offer;

i. the payment of 10,042,284.10 euro for the accepting shareholders that requested the cash consideration in full.

Subsequent to the procedure pursuant to Article 108, paragraph 2 of the Consolidated Law on Finance, Intesa Sanpaolo,

having come to hold more than 95% of the share capital of UBI Banca, exercised its right of squeeze-out pursuant to Article

111 of the Consolidated Law on Finance and, at the same time, carried out the compulsory squeeze-out pursuant to Article

108, paragraph 1 of the Consolidated Law on Finance for the shareholders of UBI Banca that requested it, through a specific

joint procedure that, as agreed with CONSOB and Borsa lItaliana (the “Joint Procedure”), was carried out in the period 18 — 29

September 2020. The Joint Procedure targeted a maximum of 21,635,917 UBI residual shares. The consideration established

in the Joint Procedure was the same as that paid for the shares purchased in the procedure pursuant to Article 108,

paragraph 2 of the Consolidated Law on Finance. During the Joint Procedure, sale requests were submitted for a total of

3,013,070 remaining shares, i.e. 13.9262% of the shares subject to the procedure. More specifically:

i for 408,474 shares, the owners requested the consideration established for the Public Offer; and

ii.  for the other 2,604,596 shares, the owners requested the cash consideration in full, i.e. 3.539 per remaining share.

No sale requests were submitted by the holders of the 18,622,847 remaining shares. Those residual shares also include

8,877,911 own shares (representing 0.7758% of the Issuer’s share capital) held by UBI Banca and 120,985 UBI Banca

ordinary shares held on own account by Intesa Sanpaolo before 17 February 2020, the announcement date of the Offer. The

UBI Banca own shares and UBI Banca ordinary shares held on own account by Intesa Sanpaolo were not transferred to

Intesa Sanpaolo under the Joint Procedure. Intesa Sanpaolo made the payment of the consideration for the Joint Procedure

on 5 October 2020 through:

i. the issuance of 17,055,121 new Intesa Sanpaolo shares, representing 0.09% of the Bank’s share capital and the
payment of a consideration of 5,718,482.25 euro to the accepting shareholders who chose the consideration
established for the Offer and to the shareholders that did not submit any sale requests;

i. the payment of 9,217,655.24 euro for the accepting shareholders that requested the cash consideration in full.

Following the conclusion of the Joint Procedure, Intesa Sanpaolo came to hold 100% of the share capital of UBI Banca.
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In addition, with resolution no. 8693 of 17 September 2020, Borsa lItaliana ordered the delisting of UBI Banca shares from
trading on the Mercato Telematico Azionario (electronic stock exchange) as of 5 October 2020 (settlement date of the Joint
Procedure), subject to suspension of the share during the sessions of 1 and 2 October 2020.

Lastly, on 29 January 2021, the plan for the merger by incorporation of UBI Banca S.p.A. into Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. was
filed with the Torino Company Register.

The merger was then approved by the Board of Directors of Intesa Sanpaolo on 2 March.

Start of the integration activities
The integration between Intesa Sanpaolo (ISP) and UBI Banca (UBI) has three main objectives: i) creating value through a
rapid and successful business integration, able to achieve significant synergies; ii) harnessing the talents of the two Groups
(people, skills, distinctive assets); and iii) creating a European-scale champion that can play a leading role in the evolution of
the post-COVID-19 banking sector.
The ISP-UBI Integration Programme was launched in September 2020, involving the entire Group (over 400 Intesa Sanpaolo
and UBI managers) and with robust governance ensured through guidance of the Programme by the Programme Managers
and periodic dedicated meetings at both project and programme level (Steering Committee, Programme Progress Updates,
Strategic Coordination Committee, Project Progress Updates).
The Programme is also organised on an effective and granular basis with 4 “staff’ and 25 “vertical” projects, over 100 sub-
prOJects and over 3,000 finished products monitored biweekly. The 4 “staff” projects include:
“Harnessing synergies, cost control and analytical support”. to estimate and harness the synergies resulting from the
integration, monitor the Programme costs and investments, and provide analytical support to the projects for the main
strategic initiatives;
- “Programme Coordination”: to coordinate and monitor the progress of the Programme and the individual projects;
- “Communications”: to manage internal, external and investor communications related to the Integration Programme;
- “Supporting structures”: to direct specific issues on-demand (e.g. legal and compliance) to the references already
identified within the individual projects.
The other “vertical” projects covered the following areas:

- 1. “Founding values of the integration”: to define the main founding values of the integration (local areas and community,
customers and people) and identify specific initiatives to be implemented;

- 2. “ESG-Impact: Social and Environmental Responsibility” to map existing the ESG/Impact activities and draw up a
roadmap for sustainability and for the commitment to local areas and communities;

- 3. “Corporate compliance and mandatory communications” to ensure the fulfilment of all the corporate obligations
towards the supervisory authorities and to prepare the documentation for the institutional bodies;

- 4. “Mandatory, operational and functioning requirements” to map and ensure the implementation of all the mandatory
requirements and the interim choices for each Governance Area,;

- b5a-5d: “Organisational Model and HR” to identify and address the organisational impacts resulting from the integration
(also in the transitional period) and develop the target organisational model, to devise the talent enhancement strategy
and the related initiatives and launch a change management plan, to identify and address the HR impacts resulting from
the integration and develop the target HR model, and to ensure effective management of procedures and trade union
agreements (both upon full implementation and during the transitional period);

- 6. “IT and Processes Integration” to manage the interventions for the migration of UBI to ISP’s IT and operational
platform, addressing the IT and process impacts resulting from all the projects of the Integration Programme;

- T7a-7d. “Sales” to define the strategy, methods and timing of the sales in line with the Programme’s objectives (including
the definition and segregation of the going concern) and to manage the IT, governance and business interventions to
effectively and efficiently complete the planned sales (ISP branches to BPER, UBI branches to BPER, insurance
operations to Unipol SAI Assicurazioni, additional ISP branches to Banca Popolare di Puglia e Basilicata - BPPB) on time
(including the necessary support to BPER);

- 8a-8m. “Business and Operational Integration Choices” to map, prioritise and address the main interim business choices
necessary for the integration during the transitional phase (e.g., developing policies for interim pricing decisions).

The Programme drew up a joint work plan whose main milestones concerned the sale of the UBI branches to BPER,

successfully completed in February 2021, and the merger of UBI into ISP (and completion of the related IT migration),

scheduled for April 2021.

The Programme has now initiated all the activities envisaged in the plan. Some of the main activities are listed below:

- appointment of Gaetano Miccicheé as Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of UBI Banca;

- approval by the Board of Directors of Intesa Sanpaolo of the list for the renewal of the Board of Directors of UBI Banca;

- definition of the founding values, identifying three key value pillars underpinning the integration;

- mapping of the ISP and UBI ESG/Impact initiatives (selected studies underway) and preparation of the 2020 Consolidated
Non-Financial Statement;

- completion of all the required preparation work for the integration plan;

- adoption of the ISP Group’s regulations by UBI;

- signing of the trade union agreement for the voluntary exits without social impacts, three months in advance, as described
in more detail below;

- implementation of the new organisational structure of the Group resulting from the integration of UBI into ISP with the
publication of Service Orders and Service Memos for the Governance Area, the Banca dei Territori Division (having
defined the target local structure, involving the creation of the new Regional Governance Centres and the Agribusiness
Department and Central Structures) and the IMI C&IB Division;

- approval by the ISP Board of Directors and the UBI Board of Directors of the cascading of the Risk Appetite Framework
(RAF) and Credit Risk Appetite (CRA) onto the UBI Group;

- in the area of IT integration, the start, according to the plan, of the implementation of the gap analysis with initial releases,
completion of the second simulation with user certification, completion of the mailing of mandatory communications, and



Report on operations — Overview of 2020

definition and implementation of actions to enable the transition of UBI customers to ISP’s digital channels (e.g., mobile
phone clearance);

- start-up of the activities for the additional sales of branches to BPER and BPPB focusing on the most urgent activities
(such as mandatory communications to customers);

- completion of the main strategic and business choices, based on the analyses made;

- identification of the target role of the main product companies within the Group;

- completion of the alignment of the ISP-UBI customer commercial communication plans;

- consolidation of the target geographical “footprint” of Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking (ISPB) and completion of the
reorganisation of customer portfolios to manage the effects of the BPER demerger, and definition of the management
approach for the customers shared between UBI Top Private and ISPB;

- completion of the detailed business continuity plan, including the IT, organisational and procedural measures for IW Bank;

- definition of the scope of UBI customers to be allocated to the IMI C&IB Division (final analyses being completed);

- presentation of the Eurizon/Pramerica integration project to the Supervisory Authorities and start of the merger process;

- completion of negotiations and submission of applications for the acquisition of Aviva Vita and Lombarda Vita and
finalisation of the agreement for the acquisition of Cargeas;

- confirmation of the closure of the Nice branch after the merger of 12 April and identification of contingency solutions to
ensure business continuity post ISP-UBI integration until the closure of the branch.

As mentioned above, on 30 September Intesa Sanpaolo signed an agreement with trade unions which aims at enabling

generational change at no social cost while continuing to ensure an alternative to the possible paths for staff re-skilling and

redeployment as well as the enhancement of the skills of the people of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group resulting from the
acquisition of UBI Banca.

The agreement identifies ways and criteria to reach the target of at least 5,000 exits on a voluntary basis by 2023, with

Group’s people either to retire or access the Solidarity Fund. Furthermore, by 2023, indefinite-term employment contracts will

be signed according to the proportion of one hire for each two voluntary exits, up to 2,500 hires, against a minimum of 5,000

envisaged voluntary exits, a calculation which does not include the exits of people moved due to the transfers of business

lines. The new hires will support the Group’s growth and its new activities, with a focus on the branch Network and on the
disadvantaged areas of the country, including through the “stabilisation” of people currently on fixed-term contracts. The

Group envisages that at least half of the hires will concern the provinces in which UBI Banca has its historical roots (Bergamo,

Brescia, Cuneo and Pavia) and the South of Italy.

The agreement has been signed well ahead of the deadline originally planned for year-end, thus highlighting the effective

progress of the integration process.

Specifically, the agreement provided that:

— the offer relating to the voluntary exits would be addressed to all the people of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s lItalian
companies which apply the CCNL Credito (bank employees National Collective Labour Contract), including the
managers;

—  people who met the retirement requirements by 31 December 2026, including by applying the so-called calculation rules
“Quota 100" and “Opzione donna”, could subscribe to the offer by November 2020 in the ways communicated by the
Group;

—  people who subscribed to the Intesa Sanpaolo 29 May 2019 Agreement or the UBI 14 January 2020 Agreement but were
not included in the lists could submit requests for voluntary exit under defined terms;

— in the event that applications for retirement or access to the Solidarity Fund were in excess of the number of 5,000, a
single list would be drawn up at Group level based on the date when the retirement requirement is met. The list would
give priority to those people who had previously subscribed to the former Intesa Sanpaolo Group 29 May 2019
agreement or to the former UBI Group 14 January 2020 agreement and had not been included among the envisaged
exits, as well as to people entitled to provisions under Article 3, paragraph 3 of Law 104/1992 for themselves, and to
disabled people with a disability of at least 67%.

Subsequently, on 14 January 2021, Intesa Sanpaolo announced that it would hire a further 1,000 people, in addition to the

2,500 already provided for in the trade union agreement of 29 September 2020 described above. Intesa Sanpaolo, following

verification with the Trade Unions that the offer for voluntary exit was taken up by at least 5,000 people, intends to accept the

total of over 7,200 voluntary exit applications submitted which fulfil the requirements, and consequently, as sought by the

Trade Unions, to hire 3,500 people in total by the end of the first half of 2024.

This decision confirms the effective progress of the process for the integration of UBI Banca into the Intesa Sanpaolo Group.

It follows the agreement signed with the Trade Unions on 30 December 2020 regarding the 5,107 people who are part of the

going concern to be sold to BPER Banca.

On 30 December 2020, the trade union agreement regulating the transfer of personnel to BPER Banca was signed, as part of

the fulfilment of the requirements established by the antitrust authority following the completion of the public exchange offer

through which ISP acquired control of UBI Banca. The agreement was signed by representatives of Intesa Sanpaolo, BPER

Banca and the Trade Unions.

Specifically, BPER has agreed on a process with the trade unions, which will last until 31 December 2021, during which —

without affecting the application throughout 2021 of the treatments currently envisaged in Intesa Sanpaolo and UBI Banca — it

will seek to harmonise the regulations applied at BPER, while still guaranteeing not only the rights established in terms of
remuneration, but also all the contributions due for supplementary pensions and supplementary health care at the selling

banks after the end of 2021.

The agreement therefore ensures significant continuity, for the personnel involved, concerning all the important aspects of

their employment relationship: professional development, agile working, holidays, training, supplementary pensions,

supplementary health care, loans and financing, and much more.

Accounting treatment of the acquisition
The Public Purchase and Exchange Offer (below “Offer” or “Public Offer”), which allowed Intesa Sanpaolo to obtain control of
UBI Banca, is a business combination that must be accounted in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard
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(IFRS) 3, which requires the application of the acquisition method. According to this method, on the acquisition date, identified
as the settlement date of the Offer (5 August 2020), the acquirer is, in short, required to allocate the cost of the combination
(Purchase Price Allocation — PPA) to the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, both measured at their fair
values. Any excess of the unallocated cost of the combination must be recognised as goodwill; alternatively the negative
difference, resulting from the recognition of the combination at favourable prices, is recognised in the income statement as
negative goodwill or badwill.
IFRS 3 allows the initial recognition of a business combination to be provisional and gives the acquirer a period of 12 months
to obtain the information necessary to identify and assess the items required for the final recognition of the business
combination and, therefore, adjusting the provisional amounts retroactively from the acquisition date. Using this option
provided by the standard, a provisional amount of the negative goodwill arising from the business combination was
determined for the Interim Statement as at 30 September 2020. In the 2020 Financial Statements, the transaction has been
recognised on a final basis following the completion of the PPA process.
IFRS 3 establishes that the consideration transferred in a business combination must be determined on the basis of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the acquirer and the liabilities incurred by the acquirer to former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the acquirer. In the present case, the consideration transferred
consists of the sum of (i) 3,445 million euro, equal to the fair value of the shares issued by Intesa Sanpaolo under the capital
increase and assigned to the shareholders of UBI Banca (1,920,734,880), and (ii) 663 million euro, equal to the cash
consideration transferred to them. The valuation of the Intesa Sanpaolo shares issued was based, in accordance with Intesa
Sanpaolo’s fair value policy, on the reference price of the Intesa Sanpaolo shares on 4 August 2020 (1.7936 euro per share),
corresponding to the last available price before the transaction that allowed Intesa Sanpaolo to acquire control of UBI Banca.
Lastly, IFRS 3 states that in a business combination achieved in stages, the acquirer must remeasure its previously held
equity interest in the acquiree at its acquisition-date fair value. The 120,985 UBI shares already held by Intesa Sanpaolo were
therefore measured at the listing price of UBI Banca on 4 August 2020 (3.709 euro per share), for a total value of 1 million
euro and that amount was also recognised in the calculation of the cost of the acquisition. Based on the above, the total cost
of the business combination was 4,109 million euro.
For the recognition of the acquisition, the consolidated shareholders’ equity of UBI Banca as at 31 July 2020, in consideration
of the acquisition that, as already mentioned, took place on 4 August 2020, was first of all compared against cost of the
combination (4,109 million euro). The Additional Tier 1 instruments issued by UBI Banca have been removed from its
consolidated shareholders’ equity as at 31 July 2020, because — although these instruments are considered capital
instruments in accordance with IAS 32 in the shareholders’ equity of UBI Banca — they are subscribed by third parties and
were not subject of the Public Purchase and Exchange Offer, which means they must not be included in the calculation and
will continue to be shown as capital instruments also in Intesa Sanpaolo’s consolidated financial statements. The consolidated
shareholders’ equity of UBI Banca for the PPA for the consolidated financial statements of Intesa Sanpaolo amounted to
9,883 million euro.
The following effects of the PPA were also considered for the calculation of the negative goodwill, again with regard to the
consolidated shareholders’ equity of the UBI Group as at 31 July 2020:
derecognition of the UBI Banca Group’s consolidated goodwill: as required by IFRS 3, the negative goodwill implicit in
the transaction replaces the historical goodwill recognised in the financial statements of the acquired entity;
— derecognition of the intangible assets recognised as a result of previous PPAs of the UBI Banca Group: these were
derecognised because new intangible assets were recognised under the PPA, representing the value of the relationships
and assets of the entire UBI Group present at the acquisition date.

In addition, with regard to the branches to be sold to BPER and to Banca Popolare di Puglia e Basilicata, given that these
transactions are strictly related to the acquisition of UBI Banca, because the AGCM approved the Public Offer by Intesa
Sanpaolo on UBI Banca subject to the execution of those structural sales, the capital loss estimated based on the sale price
has been recognised, net of the related price adjustments and tax, as a reduction in the negative goodwill in the consolidated
income statement, solely for the amount attributable to the UBI Banca branches, because the PPA pursuant to IFRS 3, which
gives rise to the negative goodwill, only concerns the assets and liabilities of the acquired entity (in this case UBI Banca). This
capital loss amounted to 1,464 million euro before tax and 1,061 million euro after tax. In fact, it should be recalled that the
agreement with BPER also provides for the sale of 31 Intesa Sanpaolo branches.

Lastly, because each of the going concerns to be sold has a sale price that represents their fair value, determined at the level
of the business line as a whole and not allocatable to the individual accounting items that make it up, the assets and liabilities
included in the going concern to be sold have been excluded from the calculation of the fair value in the PPA.

This first comparison resulted in a negative goodwill, which does not yet take into account the fair value adjustments of the
individual accounting items, of 3,234 million euro.

The PPA then focused on the fair value measurement of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, net, as specified above,
of the balance sheet items attributable to the branches to be sold reclassified as assets held for sale.
The fair value measurement of the individual accounting items, subject of acquisition, was carried out with the aid of
mdependent experts and mainly concerned:

performing loans;
—  non-performing loans;
— intangible assets not previously recognised by the acquired entity;
— investments in associates;
—  real estate portfolio;
—  valuable art assets;
—  bonds issued.
The PPA also included the write-down of the UBI Group’s property, equipment and intangible assets (mainly hardware and
software), which, following the process of integration and migration into Intesa Sanpaolo, will no longer be used and will not
contribute to the business production process.
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In addition, given that UBI Banca has adopted macro-hedging relationships, the specific balance sheet captions representing
the fair value adjustment of assets and liabilities macro-hedged against interest rate risk were derecognised in the PPA,
because for Intesa Sanpaolo’s consolidated financial statements the hedging relationships are designated ex-novo from the
acquisition date and hedged items are recognised individually at fair value in accordance with IFRS 3. The amount
derecognised in the PPA does not take into account the fair value adjustment of the assets and liabilities subject to macro-
hedges included in the going concern to be sold to BPER.

The purchase price allocation, together with the accounting of the events strictly related to the acquisition, net of the related
tax, led to the recognition of effects totalling -729 million euro. The comparison between the cost of the overall business
combination and the consolidated shareholders’ equity of UBI Banca, net of the intangible assets recognised following
previous purchase price allocations, stated at fair value at the acquisition date and taking into account the loss recognised on
the branches being sold, results in negative goodwill of 2,505 million euro. More details are provided in the table below:

(millions of euro)

UBI Group shareholders’ equity at 31 July 2020 net of AT1 instruments 9.883 a
Purchase Price -4.109 b
Derecognition of UBI Banca Group intangible assets net of tax effects -1.479 ©
Loss on branches held for sale net of tax effect -1.061 d
Negative goodwill before fair value adjustments to individual accounting captions 3.234 e=a+b+c+d
Effects of fair value adjustments to individual accounting captions -729 f

- of which performing loans 1.290

- of which non-performing loans -1.683

- of which intangible assets 593

- of which investments in associates 119

- of which adjustments to hedged assets/liabilities -685

- of which bonds issued -296

- of which write-offs of software and other intangible assets -168

- of which real estate portfolio -126

- of which valuable art assets 16

- of which other accounting captions -52

- of which effects pertaining to minorities -28

- of which related tax effects 291
Negative goodwill 2.505 g=e+f

With regard to the recognition of the negative goodwill, IFRS 3 establishes that, in order to ensure that the measurements
made in the PPA appropriately reflect all available information as of the acquisition date, the acquirer, before recognising
negative goodwill or badwill in the income statement, must conduct a reassessment of the measurement process already
conducted, to verify the completeness of the remeasurement of the values and the reasonableness and non-arbitrariness of
the measurement approaches and parameters adopted. In addition, the ECB, in its “Guide on the supervisory approach to
consolidation in the banking sector” of 12 January 2021, stressed the need for the appropriate calculation of the badwill
arising from the PPA to be duly verified.

To this end, Intesa Sanpaolo has carried out a reassessment of the main measurements, both directly and with the aid of its
advisors. As further verification of the correctness and reasonableness of the conclusions reached and the resulting negative
goodwill, Intesa Sanpaolo asked a different independent third party expert, the company Partners S.p.A., to carry out an
independent verification of the correctness, reasonableness and non-arbitrariness of the methodological choices made in the
PPA process, particularly with regard to the methodologies and measurement parameters used. Following these verifications,
Partners S.p.A. — represented by Prof. Angelo Provasoli and Prof. Massimiliano Nova — expressed a positive opinion
concerning the correctness and the methodological consistency, the soundness of the assumptions made, the
appropriateness of the implementation choices, and the overall reasonableness of the results of the PPA in question.

The accounting effects of the acquisition also include the expenses related to the Public Offer totalling 146 million euro, with
the part directly attributable to the capital increase and the corresponding issue of Intesa Sanpaolo shares (112 million euro)
recognised as a reduction in shareholders’ equity reserves and the remainder (34 million euro) recognised in the income
statement.

For the reclassified income statement, in addition to the effects, already mentioned above, relating to the negative goodwill of

2,505 million euro and the transaction costs for the Public Offer for the component not attributable to shareholders’ equity,
amounting to -34 million euro, the following were allocated to the caption “Effects of purchase price allocation (net of tax)”:

59
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(i) -85 million euro as a capital loss, net of tax, related to the Intesa Sanpaolo branches to be sold to BPER Banca; and
(i) -37 million euro as the amortisation accrued in 2020, net of tax, of the differences resulting from the PPA between the fair
values and the previous carrying amounts recognised by the acquired entity and (iii) -287 million euro net of tax (-428 million
euro gross of tax) for the reinstatement of the ECL on the performing loans of the UBI Group that had been removed as a
result of the fair value adjustment of the loan portfolio. The resulting overall profit and loss effect allocated to the caption
“Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax)” was 2,062 million euro.

In addition, as mentioned above, as part of the UBI Banca acquisition, expenses totalling 2,041 million euro, gross of tax
(1,378 million euro net of tax), related to the integration of the two groups, were recognised in the 2020 consolidated income
statement. These expenses included around 1,340 million euro related to the agreement reached with the trade unions for
voluntary exits, while the remainder mainly related to IT and advisory costs connected to the integration process. For the
overall measurement of the net effect of the transaction, as the resulting negative goodwill, the decision was made to expense
the charges for integration in the year when the business combination became effective, even though they were not
considered in the PPA as required by IFRS 3. In fact, these charges would not have been incurred without the Public Offer for
UBI Banca and the price offered by Intesa Sanpaolo, which the negative goodwill amount depends on, is also related to the
synergies that can be achieved once the restructuring programme is completed. This approach is consistent with the
expectations of the ECB, which indicated in the document mentioned above that badwill should also be used to cover the
charges for integration connected to the business combination”... Given these uncertainties, the acquirer is expected to take
advantage of this relatively low acquisition price to increase the sustainability of the business model of the combined entity, for
example to cover transaction or integration costs, or other investments, or to increase the prudence of assets’ valuation in
particular for non-performing loans ...".

Accordingly, the overall positive accounting effect recognised in the 2020 income statement as a result of the acquisition was
684 million euro.

For the going concerns that will soon be sold to BPER Banca and Banca Popolare di Puglia e Basilicata described above, the
related assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2020 have been recognised in the specific held-for-sale asset and liability
captions. In terms of amounts, as at 31 December 2020 the non-current assets held for sale amounted to 26 billion euro,
including loans (net loans to customers) totalling 24.9 billion euro (of which 24 billion euro for performing loans and 0.9 billion
euro for non-performing loans) and property and equipment totalling 0.7 billion euro. The associated liabilities totalled
33.1 billion euro, including deposits (amounts due to customers) amounting to 32.7 billion euro and other liabilities of 0.2
billion euro.

As already stated above, the capital loss estimated based on the sale price has been recognised, net of the related price
adjustments and tax, as a reduction in the negative goodwill in the consolidated income statement, solely for the amount
attributable to the UBI Banca branches. This is because the PPA process, according to IFRS 3, that gives rise to the negative
goodwill, only concerns the assets and liabilities of the acquired entity (in this case UBI Banca). This capital loss amounted to
1,464 million euro before tax and 1,061 million euro after tax. In fact, it should be recalled that the agreement with BPER also
provides for the sale of 31 Intesa Sanpaolo branches, the cost of which (108 million euro gross of tax and 85 million euro net
of tax), as already mentioned, has been recognised in the income statement outside the PPA process.

Other highlights

As mentioned in the 2019 Annual Report, in December of that year the Board of Directors of Intesa Sanpaolo and Intesa
Sanpaolo Vita approved the acquisition of a controlling interest in RBM Assicurazione Salute, a company founded in 2007 by
the RBH Group and wholly owned by the Favaretto family.

In May 2020, Intesa Sanpaolo Vita — after having obtained the necessary authorisations from AGCM and IVASS — completed
the acquisition of 50% plus one share of the company. Subsequently, in the three-year period 2026-2029, the shareholding
will be increased to 100%, with the purchase price which will be determined according to a mixed formula (equity and income)
based on the achievement of pre-established growth targets.

RBM Assicurazione Salute — the only independent player — is the third largest operator in Italy in the health insurance market,
in addition to having partnerships with over 130 supplementary healthcare funds and care assistance funds in Italy. The
company operates under the new name Intesa Sanpaolo RBM Salute and targets both RBM’s traditional customers and the
Bank'’s retail and corporate customers, adding its healthcare services to the current “XME Protezione” product developed by
Intesa Sanpaolo Assicura.

This transaction qualifies as a business combination and has consequently been recognised in accordance with the
provisions of IFRS 3, using the purchase price allocation (PPA) method for the acquisition, which allocates the cost of the
combination to the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, both measured at their fair values. The comparison of
the total purchase price, amounting to 657 million euro, with the shareholders’ equity at fair value resulting from the PPA,
amounting to around 378 million euro, resulted in goodwill of 279 million euro, recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and allocated to the Insurance CGU.

On 13 June 2020, the last retrocession was made of the high risk loans originating from the former Venetian banks
reclassified as bad loans and/or unlikely-to-pay loans, considering that the decree whereby the Ministry of the Economy and
Finance formalised the High Risk Guarantee for an amount of 3.7 billion euro and Law Decree 99/2017 had established that
Intesa Sanpaolo’s right to retrocede the high risk loans must be exercised “within three years of the sale”, completed on
26 June 2017. The retrocession applied to a total portfolio with a gross value of 201 million euro, for a retrocession price,
aligned to the book value, of 176 million euro, relating to loans reclassified as non-performing in 2020, until the end of May.
Another retrocession event occurred in the second quarter of 2020, on 18 April, involving a total of 121 million euro of gross
value, for a retrocession price, in line with the book value, of 103 million euro, relating to loans reclassified as non-performing
in the third and fourth quarters of 2019. Accordingly, as a result of the above, there were no longer any high risk loans
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reclassified as assets held for sale pursuant to IFRS 5 and no other retrocession events will be planned. Overall, following the
acquisition, the Group sold loans to banks in liquidation for a gross value of 1,138 million euro at a price of 953 million euro.

On 26 June 2020, Intesa Sanpaolo reached an agreement with Aleatica S.A.U., a Spanish company specialising in
infrastructure investments, wholly-owned by the Australian IFM Global Infrastructure Fund, for the sale of the entire equity
investment held in Autostrade Lombarde (of which Intesa Sanpaolo holds a 55.8% interest) and its operating subsidiary
Brebemi, the concession holder for the Milan-Brescia (A35) motorway segment, for a consideration of around 300 million
euro. After having received the necessary authorisations, the transaction was completed on 26 October 2020, with the
recognition of a net gain in the consolidated income statement for the fourth quarter of 2020 for a total of 65 million euro.

On 30 June 2020, after having received the required authorisations from the relevant authorities, Intesa Sanpaolo and Nexi
finalised the strategic agreement, in respect of payment systems, signed on 19 December 2019 and disclosed to the market
on the same day, providing in particular for:

— the transfer to Nexi (by assignment to the subsidiary Nexi Payments) of the Intesa Sanpaolo business line consisting of
the acquiring activities currently carried out for over 380,000 points of sale. Intesa Sanpaolo will retain the sale force
dedicated to acquiring new customers;

— along-term partnership, with Nexi to become the sole partner of Intesa Sanpaolo in the acquiring activities and the latter
to distribute the acquiring services provided by Nexi while maintaining the relationship with its customers.

Intesa Sanpaolo sold the shares received from the contribution to Nexi and used part of the consideration to purchase shares

of Nexi from the latter’s reference shareholder, Mercury UK HoldCo Limited, equal to a 9.9% shareholding of Intesa Sanpaolo

in the share capital of Nexi. The finalisation of the transaction generated a net capital gain of around 1.1 billion euro for the

Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s consolidated income statement in the second quarter of 2020. This figure has been calculated

including the effect attributable to the difference between the purchase price of the 9.9% of the Nexi share capital and the

corresponding value resulting from the stock exchange price of the Nexi shares.

The merger by incorporation of Banca IMI into the Parent Company Intesa Sanpaolo, closed in accordance with the
Shareholders’ Meeting and Board of Directors’ resolutions passed by the two companies and the provisions of the deed of
merger dated 19 June 2020, entered into effect on 20 July 2020. The integration of Banca IMI into the Parent Company, with
the consequent creation of the new IMI Corporate & Investment Banking Division, is part of Intesa Sanpaolo’s 2018-21
Business Plan, as a key driver for its implementation.

The new Division maintains a clear reference to Banca IMI, including at the level of its brand, to emphasise that the
integration represents the continuation of a process of excellence that began several years ago and has been further
reinforced in order to be optimally positioned to face the challenges that only organisations focused on the future, but with a
wealth of solid history behind them, will be capable of overcoming.

The creation of the new IMI Corporate & Investment Banking Division allows the Intesa Sanpaolo Group to serve its
corporate, public administration and financial institution customers even more effectively by drawing on a unique business
model, specialist expertise and top-tier professionalism, in addition to a brand that represents lItalian excellence in capital
markets and investment banking and tells a story of essential values and lasting successes. This is in addition to the further
reinforcement of an international structure consolidated over the years, based on a network of corporate hubs and branches
located in 25 countries worldwide, capable of supporting and assisting customers in their activities outside Italy's borders.

On 5 October 2020 Fideuram — Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking (Fideuram — ISP PB), the Private Banking Division of the
Intesa Sanpaolo Group and REYL & Cie SA (REYL), an independent and diversified banking group headquartered in
Geneva, announced they have agreed on the terms of a strategic partnership: Fideuram — ISP PB will acquire a 69% stake in
REYL and will contribute its Swiss banking subsidiary, Intesa Sanpaolo Private Bank (Suisse) Morval (ISPBM), to REYL.
Following the closing of the transaction — which is subject to the usual regulatory approvals and is expected to be completed
by the first half of 2021 — ISPBM will be merged into REYL, creating a sizeable international private banking group,
headquartered in Geneva, with close to 400 employees, assets under management of over CHF 18 billion and regulatory
shareholders’ equity of around CHF 250 million. In addition to Switzerland, the Bank will also be present in the European
Union, Latin America, the Middle East and the Far East.

The partnership will enable Fideuram — ISP PB to strengthen its international private banking activities, particularly in
promising growth areas, and to continue playing a leading role in the ongoing consolidation of the Swiss financial sector. It
also confirms the choice of Switzerland as the headquarter for Fideuram — ISB PB’s international private banking operations
and adds significant scale to its existing presence in the country. With its distinctive track record, leading domestic private
banking footprint and overall financial strength, Fideuram — ISP PB offers REYL a strong cultural fit and multiple growth
catalysts whilst safeguarding its entrepreneurial DNA and its innovative business model.

REYL will continue to guide its successful 360° organic growth strategy, centred on delivering innovative solutions to its
customers across its five business lines: Wealth Management, Entrepreneur & Family Office Services, Corporate Advisory &
Structuring, Asset Services and Asset Management.

Fideuram — ISP PB’s and REYL’s management have jointly defined a long-term strategic plan, that will provide a robust
foundation on which to build a leading business in the coming years. The transaction will bring numerous benefits, including
strengthened governance and capitalisation, cross-referrals over all business segments, seeding capital for new product
initiatives, and placement, syndication and co-advisory opportunities, in addition to a vastly expanded distribution network.

On 13 October, Intesa Sanpaolo, in cooperation with the EIB Group, launched a new synthetic securitisation of a portfolio of
loans amounting to approximately 2 billion euro under the “GARC” (Gestione Attiva Rischio di Credito - Active Credit Risk
Management) programme. The operation, which was launched together with the European Investment Fund (EIF) and the
European Investment Bank (EIB), is designed to provide new loans at favourable conditions to the Group’s SME and micro-
enterprise customer base. Through this operation, the Bank continues its efforts to support businesses affected by the
emergency caused by the COVID-19 epidemic: the resources made available through the EIF guarantee on the mezzanine
tranche will be used to provide new loans to SMEs, including micro-enterprises.
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The initiative is primarily intended for investments by businesses involved in the production chains and to support investments
in digitisation and sustainability, in order to support the relaunch of Italy’s productive economy. This will allow businesses to
access new loans for a total amount of 450 million euro, of which 100 million euro have already been stipulated at particularly
favourable conditions. The new loans may also be granted in combination with the government decree measures issued to
address the pandemic emergency with guarantees from the Central Fund and SACE.

Intesa Sanpaolo supports production chains and supply chain suppliers through its innovative approach to assessing
creditworthiness and therefore access to credit through its Sviluppo Filiere Programme — which was conceived at the end of
2017 to ensure the development of the country’s production system — by leveraging supply chains which are often made up of
outstanding small and medium-sized enterprises, which contribute to making Made in Italy products stand out throughout the
world.

The securitisation forms part of Intesa Sanpaolo’s dynamic credit risk management initiatives, which aim to optimise the
Bank’s resources and boost access to credit for SMEs through capital markets.

On 30 October, Intesa Sanpaolo Rent Foryou, a Group company that offers operating rental solutions to manufacturing and
distribution businesses and their client companies, was created from the acquisition of Euroconsult RD Spa.

The company was founded to enhance the banking offering for businesses through an innovative, simple and sustainable
alternative solution to purchasing and financial leasing. Intesa Sanpaolo Rent Foryou matches supply and demand for rental
goods, gives customers rapid access to the latest technology on the market, reduces the risk of obsolescence and provides
cost certainty, with fully deductible lease payments. The transaction qualifies as a business combination and has therefore
been accounted for using the acquisition method according to IFRS 3.

On 18 November 2020, Intesa Sanpaolo concluded an ordinary share buy-back programme — launched on 16 November
2020 - servicing plans that assigned Intesa Sanpaolo ordinary shares for free to the Group’s employees and Financial
Advisors covering: (i) the share-based incentive plan for 2019 (“2019 Incentive Plan”) reserved for Risk Takers who accrued a
bonus in excess of the “materiality threshold”, for the recipients of a “particularly high” amount, and for those who, among
Middle Management or Professionals that are not Risk Takers, accrued “relevant bonuses”; and (ii) the 2018-2021 Incentive
Plan for Financial Advisors of the Fideuram — Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking and Sanpaolo Invest Networks (the “Fideuram
Incentive Plan”), which provides for the use of ordinary shares of the Parent Company Intesa Sanpaolo for the beneficiaries
identified as Risk Takers. In addition, the programme has been implemented in order to grant, when certain conditions occur,
severance payments upon early termination of employment. The purchases were made in accordance with the terms
authorised by the Shareholders’ Meeting of Intesa Sanpaolo of 27 April 2020. The subsidiaries involved also concluded their
purchase programmes of the Parent Company’s shares to be assigned, free of charge, to their employees. The programmes
were approved by their respective corporate bodies within their remits and are analogous to the programme approved at the
Parent Company’s Shareholders’ Meeting.

On the three days of execution of the programme (16, 17 and 18 November 2020), the Intesa Sanpaolo Group purchased a
total of 25,400,000 Intesa Sanpaolo ordinary shares, through its IMI Corporate & Investment Banking Division, representing
approximately 0.13% of the share capital of the Parent Company, at an average purchase price of 1.852 euro per share, for a
total countervalue of 47,046,279 euro. The Parent Company purchased 15,606,562 shares at an average purchase price of
1.854 euro per share, for a value of 28,941,497 euro.

On 23 November, UBI Banca signed an agreement with the Aviva Vita Group for the early termination of the partnership in the
distribution of life insurance products, through which the Bank had acquired a 20% interest in the share capital of Aviva Vita at
a price of around 400 million euro. The agreement also provided for the exercise of the call option held by UBI Banca to
purchase the remaining 80% of the share capital of the subsidiary.

A similar agreement was signed on 23 December with the Cattolica Assicurazioni Group with which UBI Banca had life
bancassurance agreements in place through the company Lombarda Vita in which the Bank has a 40% stake. This
agreement is also aimed at the early termination of the partnership and the exercise of the option by UBI Banca to purchase
the remaining 60% of the share capital at a price of between 290 and 300 million euro.

The exercise of the options is subject to the issue of the necessary authorisations by the competent supervisory authorities,
and is expected by the end of the second quarter of 2021.

The above agreements were concluded in the light of one of the cornerstones of the UBI Banca integration, namely the
distribution of Intesa Sanpaolo Group insurance products to the customers acquired.

Also in November, the ECB — in relation to the Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process (SREP) — announced that in 2021
Intesa Sanpaolo, on a consolidated basis, must continue to meet the capital requirement that was established last year. The
overall capital requirement the Bank has to meet in terms of Common Equity Tier 1 ratio is 8.44% under the transitional
arrangements for 2020 and 8.63% on a fully loaded basis.

On 15 December and 18 December, two securitisations were completed on portfolios of bad loans of UBI Banca and the
Parent Company, previously sold to a vehicle under Law 130/99, worth around 5.1 billion euro gross and around 1.6 billion
euro net, which comply with the regulatory requirements for bearing a State guarantee (GACS).

The securitisation vehicles issued senior and subordinated notes amounting, respectively, to 87% and 13% of the portfolio
price for the transaction carried out by UBI Banca and 81% and 19% of the portfolio price for the transaction carried out by the
Parent Company.

In both cases, the senior notes were fully underwritten, and will be retained by UBI Banca and Intesa Sanpaolo, respectively.
These securities, which have received an investment grade rating from specialist agencies, are expected to bear a GACS by
the first quarter of 2021.

The subordinated notes, also initially underwritten by UBI Banca and Intesa Sanpaolo, were sold 95% to third-party investors
with the remaining 5% retained in compliance with current regulatory requirements in order to obtain full accounting and
regulatory derecognition of the portfolio.
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On 18 December, the Board of Directors of Intesa Sanpaolo, in line with the 2018-2021 Business Plan and the announcement
made at the time of the Public Exchange Offer for UBI Banca, approved the start of the preparations for the execution of a
series of transactions for the disposal, in 2021, of portfolios of loans classified as “bad loans” and “unlikely-to-pay” (UTP). As
at 31 December 2020, these portfolios had a gross book value of 5.9 billion euro. In accordance with IFRS 5 and Intesa
Sanpaolo’s accounting policies, the portfolios to be sold, relating to loans of the Parent Company, the UBI Group and Intesa
Sanpaolo Provis, have been reclassified in the 2020 financial statements to assets held for sale, aligning their net carrying
amount to their estimated realisable price upon sale, also based on specific fairness opinions, which, for the loans of the UBI
Group, correspond to the fair values determined during the PPA.

Lastly, as part of the broader project aimed at focusing on core business and strengthening the Private Banking Division’s
international operations, on 18 December 2020, the Board of Directors of ISP approved a transaction involving the sale by
Fideuram Bank Luxembourg (below “FBL”) of the going concern related to the Custodian Bank, Fund Administration and
accompanying services, together with the related contracts and staff. The sale of this going concern will allow FBL to refocus
its activities on the core business of managing international retail customers, while reducing operational risks by outsourcing
those services. The transaction is expected to be completed by the first half of 2021, subject to the necessary authorisations
from the competent authorities. For the 2020 Financial Statements, the assets and liabilities pertaining to this going concern
have been classified under non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations and associated liabilities.

With regard to the events occurring after the end of the year — in addition to the above-mentioned developments related to the
acquisition and integration of UBI Banca — on 8 February 2021 Intesa Sanpaolo Vita signed a memorandum of understanding
with BNP Paribas Cardif, which contains the essential elements of a subsequent definitive agreement that will govern the
acquisition of 100% of Cargeas Assicurazioni S.p.A., a non-life insurance company operating in the bancassurance sector,
mainly through UBI Banca'’s banking network.

Cargeas recorded Non-Life Premium Income of around 226 million euro in 2020, through the sale of solutions in the motor,
property, health, credit protection, company and income protection segments, with around 600,000 customers throughout
Italy.

The transaction is expected to be completed by the first half of 2021 and is subject to the necessary authorisations from the
competent authorities.

The purchase price of 390 million euro will be paid in full upon completion of the transaction.

This initiative, which is consistent with Intesa Sanpaolo’s strategy for growth in the non-life insurance business, is expected to
generate significant synergies, in addition to alignment with the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s standards in terms of Corporate
Governance, Risk Control and service levels.

BNP Paribas Cardif remains active in the global provision of insurance services, including non-life business in Italy and will
continue to offer the full range of products for both the BNP Paribas Group and other partners.

On 23 February 2021, as part of the broader strategy of focusing more on its core business, Fideuram — Intesa Sanpaolo
Private Banking signed an agreement with State Street Bank International GmbH (Luxembourg Branch) for the latter to take
over the custodian bank and fund administrator activities currently carried out by its subsidiary Fideuram Bank Luxembourg.
The custodian bank and fund administrator functions taken on by State Street represent around 42 billion euro of assets
under management that will remain with the Fideuram — Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking Group.

Fideuram — Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking is assigning these services to State Street, in recognition of its ability to reduce
operational risks, support the Group’s growth plans, foster continuity and provide a high quality service, in keeping with its
position as the main international partner that Intesa Sanpaolo Group has used for its securities services since 2010.

The completion of the transaction, which is subject to the necessary authorisations from the competent authorities, is
expected by the end of June 2021.

The progress of the 2018-2021 Business Plan

The 2018-2021 Business Plan seeks to maintain solid and sustainable value creation and distribution for Shareholders and to
build the number 1 Bank in Europe.

The Group also aims to strengthen its leadership in Corporate Social Responsibility and leave a positive impact on society,
while also increasing its own internal inclusion, without any discrimination.

In a new highly digitalised and competitive world, the Bank will continue to pursue its goals by leveraging its values and the
proven ability of a results oriented delivery machine.

The pillars of the 2018-2021 Business Plan are:

—  Significant de-risking at no cost to Shareholders;

—  Cost reduction through further simplification of the operating model;

—  Revenue growth capturing new business opportunities.

The enablers are our people, who continue to be Intesa Sanpaolo’s most important resource, and the completion of the
digital transformation.

De-risking

De-risking is the first pillar of the Business Plan, through which the Group aims to reduce the level of gross non-performing
loans as a proportion of total loans, at no cost to Shareholders, as well as the development of specific Credit Strategies, at the
origination stage, designed to direct the development and composition of the loan portfolio towards a risk/return profile that is
recognised as optimal over the medium/long-term and consistent with the risk appetite and value creation for the Group.
Different instruments are used by the Group based on the degree of risk and type of customer.
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With regard to the management of bad loans, the partnership with Intrum has helped to reduce their size in absolute and
relative terms, also by improving the efficiency of the operational KPIs used for performance monitoring.

The Group has already achieved the target, one year ahead of schedule, for the reduction of non-performing loans set in the
Business Plan for the entire four-year period 2018-21. Non-performing loans before adjustments amounted to 20.5 billion
euro, excluding the contribution of UBI Banca (-31.6 billion euro since the beginning of the Plan), bringing the ratio of non-
performing loans (before adjustments) to total loans to 4.9% excluding the contribution of UBI Banca (11.9% at the beginning
of the Plan) and 4.4% including its contribution. The cost of risk stood at 104 basis points (50 basis points excluding the
contribution of UBI Banca and the provisions for future impacts of COVID-19).

With regard to the containment of UTPs, from the first half of 2020 the proactive management of loans to businesses has
been aided by the partnership with Prelios. At the end of the year, the gross stock of Corporate and SME UTPs fell to 7.1
billion euro (7.7 billion euro in 2019).

In order to strengthen its credit management models, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group has set up the internal Pulse unit to
effectively manage past due payments for the retail segment, by identifying the reasons for the loan repayment difficulties,
speeding up the process of recovering arrears and supporting the remediation of the positions, also by proposing negotiation
strategies to customers using decision trees. During the year, its activities were extended to include the granting of moratoria
to customers in difficulty due to circumstances connected with COVID-19, a service previously only provided by the branches
of the Banca dei Territori Division.

Lastly, the Active Credit Portfolio Steering Department is responsible for the active risk management of the loan portfolio, in
particular by implementing credit risk projects and hedging transactions aimed at reducing RWAs and extending the
application of specific pricing adjustments to direct the strategy of new disbursements towards sectors with a better risk/return
profile (Credit Strategies Adjustment).

Cost reduction

Cost reduction is the Second Pillar of the 2018-2020 Business Plan, through which the Group aims to reduce the level of both
fixed and variabl